
 

 
TOWN OF WINGATE 
Board of Commissioners Meeting 
Tuesday, January 19, 2010  
7:00 PM 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
The Wingate Board of Commissioners met in the Helms Center, 3910 Hwy 74 E., Wingate with Mayor 
Bill Braswell presiding. 
 
Present: Mayor Bill Braswell and Mayor Pro Tem Brent Moser  

Commissioners Barry Green, John Mangum, and Blair Stegall 
 

Absent:     Commissioner Johnny Jacumin 
 

 

Staff:         Town Administrator Dryw Blanchard, Public Works Director Mike Brower, Police 
Chief Barry Glass, Code Enforcement Brad Sellers, Grant Administrator Sandra 
Thomas and Town Clerk/Finance Officer Karen Wingo 

 
 
 
I.  Call to Order 
 

At 7:00 PM, Mayor Braswell called the regular meeting to order.  A quorum was present.  
Everyone stood for the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag.  A moment of silent 
reflection was observed.  
 
2.  Approval of Minutes 
 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Mangum to approve the minutes of the previous meeting. 
MOTION was seconded by Commissioner Stegall and was unanimously approved. 
  
3.  Approval of Agenda 
 

Mayor Braswell asked for any additions or deletions to the agenda. 
Mayor Pro Tem Moser requested the addition of New Business:  Community Center Rental 
 
MOTION was made by Commissioner Mangum to approve the agenda as amended. MOTION 
was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Moser and was unanimously approved. 
 
4. Public Comments   
 

Mayor Braswell asked for comments from the public.   
Robert Stedje-Larsen asked for an update on the sidewalks for E. Wilson Street.  Mr. 
Blanchard responded that the easements are still at our attorney’s office.  He hopes to have 
some progress by our February 16th meeting. 
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5.  Public Hearing:  Wingate Park at Highland Community Park Project 
 

Mayor Braswell opened the hearing and asked for public comments.  This public hearing is a 
requirement for the PARTF grant application. 
Beatrice Colson, a long-time resident of Highland Park, spoke in support of the project.  She 
announced that she brought her pastor, Rev. Floyd, and a couple of neighbors with her 
tonight to support the project; they did not speak.    
Ms. Twigs, Director of Service at Wingate University, stated that she is excited about this 
project and the energy it could bring to the area. 
Being no further comments, Mayor Braswell closed the public hearing. 
 
6.  Presentation of Audit for FY Ending June 30, 2009  
 

Lauren Mather, CPA with Moyer Smith & Roller touched on the following items: 
 93% collection rate for property taxes   
 Restricted Intergovernmental Grants –$14,205 over budget 
 GF Expenditures  – under budget in all departments except Police and Fire  
 Water/Sewer - $3,800 variance in budget  
 Cash Flows – Net cash inflows $89,000  
 Good debt ratio with assets of $5.3 million and debt of $520,000 

 
Audit is attached hereto as EXHIBIT A and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
7. Continuing Business 
 
Carolina Thread Trail Interlocal Agreement 
 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Stegall to approve this contract for the Carolina Thread 
Trail Interlocal Agreement.  MOTION was seconded by Commissioner Mangum and was 
unanimously approved.   
Wingate’s cost is $133.96.  This contract has been approved by the Town Attorney. 
 
Contract is attached hereto as EXHIBIT B and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
Utility Master Plan Contract 
 

Total cost for the plan is $39,000 and is being funded by a grant from the NC Rural Center.  
The proposed engineering consultant, Stearns & Wheler, is a division of GHD, consultant on 
the comprehensive plan.  The contract is identical to the comprehensive plan contract except 
the scope of services is specific to development of the utility master plan. 

 
MOTION was made by Mayor Pro Tem Moser to approve the Utility Master Plan contract 
(pending attorney approval) with Stearns & Wheeler in the amount of $39,000.  MOTION 
was seconded by Commissioner Stegall and was unanimously approved. 
 
Contract is attached hereto as EXHIBIT C and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
Application Process for Selection of ABC Board Members 
 

The responsibility of the Board of Commissioners in appointing ABC Board members is: 
1. Appoint ABC members 
2. Determine compensation 
3. Set length of terms and/or term limits 
4. Name a chairman to serve for the first year/term 
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MOTION was made by Commissioner Mangum to approve the following items in relation to the 
ABC Board members’ appointment process: 

 application deadline the week of February 15th 
 selected applicants will be subject to a criminal background check 
 in-town residents only 
 the Board will hold a special meeting on Tuesday, February 23 at 7 PM to 

interview applicants 
MOTION was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Moser and was unanimously approved. 

 
Application is attached hereto as EXHIBIT D and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
8. New Business  
 

Ordinance to Declare Property Unfit for Human Habitation 
 

The property located at 308 Booker has been designated as unfit for human habitation by 
Brad Sellers, Code Enforcement Officer.  Mr. Sellers began working with the property owner 
of 308 Booker Street in August, 2007 to determine whether the property was fit for human 
habitation.  Since this time, Mr. Sellers has escalated his enforcement in accordance with the 
Town’s Minimum Housing Code. 
 
Mr. Sellers has worked closely with the property owner, Town Attorney, Habitat for 
Humanity, and Social Services to insure the property owner was treated fairly and 
compassionately. Unfortunately, the property has not been brought into compliance and the 
next step is to declare the property unfit for human habitation and require it to be brought 
into compliance, demolished, or removed. 
 
MOTION was made by Commissioner Stegall to adopt the following ordinance 2010-01. 
MOTION was seconded by Commissioner Mangum and was unanimously approved.  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE WINGATE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TO DECLARE THE PROPERTY OF EVA SIMPSON 
AT 308 / 107 BOOKER STREET, WINGATE, NC 

UNFIT FOR HUMAN HABITATION AND ORDER THE DWELLING 
 REPAIRED OR DEMOLISHED AND REMOVED 

Ordinance 2010-01 
 
This matter comes before the Board of Commissioners on the petition of the Code 
Enforcement Official, Brad Sellers, for an ordinance finding a structure located on the herein 
described property unfit for human habitation and ordering the structure repaired or 
demolished in order to effectuate the purpose of Chapter 160A, Article 19 of the North 
Carolina General Statues with respect to the property hereinafter described. 
   
The Board of Commissioners hereby makes and enters the following FINDINGS OF FACT: 
 
1. The residential dwelling located at 308/107 Booker Street, Wingate, North Carolina is 

owned by and being the property of Eva L. Simpson and identified as Tax Parcel Number 
09025009, being the same property described by deed dated January 14, 1946 in book 
102, page 191, Union County Registry.  For further reference, see Estate file 094E, 439, 
Union County Superior Court. 
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2. Based upon complaints received, in April of 2009, the Wingate Code Enforcement Official 
conducted an inspection of the dwelling, observed violations of the Minimum Housing 
Ordinance which included: exterior, asphalt shingles seen in the interior of the ceiling; 
ceiling in shower/tub area fallen in; ceiling in kitchen area fallen in; water spots located 
throughout home on ceiling; possible rot and decay in floor in kitchen and bath areas; 
windows boarded and/or covered with plastic; cracks in window frames; siding and 
insulation has pulled away from home; kitchen area contained open and unused food 
items, sink area not adequate for the proper storage and preparation of serving food; 
entire interior of home congested with furniture, clothing, bed mattress, shoes, and baby 
dolls not leaving room to walk through the home; no central heat or air conditioning 
unit; numerous electrical drop cords plugged into one outlet in the kitchen area; and 
unprotected electrical wire hanging from the ceiling in the back storage room where the 
hot water heater is located; no safe means of egress in case of a fire; and the property is 
not sanitary. 

 
3. Letters were sent on August 23, 2007 and May 28, 2008 in reference to the inspection and 

the condition of the dwelling. 
 
4. A Minimum Housing Complaint and Notice of Hearing was issued by the Minimum Housing 

Code Enforcement Officer on May 4, 2009, setting a hearing date regarding the dwelling 
for May 21, 2009.  The hearing was continued until May 28, 2009 due to Ms. Simpson 
needing to take her mother to the Doctor and then the hearing was continued again until 
June 9, 2009 to allow DSS Adult Protective Services to attend as well as a representative 
from Habitat for Humanity. 

 
5. Eva Simpson, being the sole party in interest, was duly personally served with Complaint 

and Notice of Hearing on May 11, 2009 at 2:43 pm. 
 
6. The Minimum Housing Code Enforcement Officer held and conducted the Minimum 

Housing Code Enforcement Hearing on June 9, 2009 at which Ms. Eva Simpson attended. 
 
7. As a result of the hearing, the Minimum Housing Code Enforcement Officer made and 

entered an Order finding said dwelling to be substandard, severely deteriorated, unfit 
for human habitation and hazardous to the health, safety and welfare of the residents of 
the Town of Wingate and in violation of sections 150.04, 150.05, 150.06, 150.07, 150.08, 
150.09, 150.13 and 150.14 of Chapter 150 the Minimum Housing Code, and on August 25, 
2009, entered an order ordering Eva Simpson to repair or demolish and remove the 
dwelling by December 28th, 2009. 

 
8. The Order entered by the Minimum Housing Code Enforcement Officer was personally 

served on Eva Simpson on August 25, 2009 at 11:07 am. 
 
9. Subsequent inspections on January 7, 2010 by the Code Enforcement Officer revealed 

that Eva Simpson failed to comply with the order and said property continues to be out 
of compliance with the Order. 

 
10. The structure located on the property described herein is and continues to be unfit for 

human habitation and Eva Simpson has been given reasonable opportunity to bring the 
structure into conformity with the Minimum Housing Code. 
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11. That the order of the Code Enforcement Officer, entered on August 25, 2009 ordering Eva 
Simpson to repair or demolish and remove said structure was not appealed and the time 
for appeal has expired and is found to be correct and proper and is therefore ratified and 
incorporated herein by reference. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED THE CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER IS HEARBY 
ORDERED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1.  The Code Enforcement Officer is hereby ordered to cause the above structure located at 

308/107 Booker Street, Wingate, North Carolina, to be demolished and removed and is 
authorized to utilize all other statutory means of enforcing the order and this ordinance 
including by not limited to the remedies set out in N.C. G.S. 160A-175 (e) and (f) and 
N.C.G.S. 160A-443 (4) and (5). 

 
2. That the cost associated with demolition and removal of the structure to effectuate the 

purpose of this Ordinance shall be a lien against the property as provided in N.C.G.S. 
160A-443(6) and filed with the Town of Wingate Tax Collector. 

 
3. That all personal property, fixtures, and salvageable materials remaining in the dwelling 

shall be disposed of and any funds derived there from shall be used in conformity with 
N.C.G.S. 160A-443(6)c. 

 
4. This ordinance shall be recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Union County 

and indexed in the grantor index under the property owner’s name. 
 
This ordinance shall be effective from and after the date of its adoption. 
 
 Adopted this 20th day January, 2010. 
 
Replacement of Totaled 2006 Dodge Charger 
 

In October, 2009 Sgt. Philemon was involved in an accident on Highway 74 resulting in a total 
loss of the 2006 Dodge Charger he was driving.  The accident was not his fault.  Since 
October, we have been waiting for the other driver’s insurance company to settle the claim.  
The insurance company has offered to settle the matter as follows: 

 
1. They will pay $12,432 if we decide to keep the vehicle 
2. They will pay $16,432 if we surrender title to the vehicle 
 

The cost to replace the car with a 2010 Dodge Charger is $20,100.  Once the cost to stripe the 
vehicle and move the equipment is included, the Town’s out-of-pocket cost will be $5,918.   
 
MOTION was made by Commissioner Mangum to declare the 2006 Dodge Charger as surplus 
property and replace the car. MOTION was seconded by Commissioner Stegall and was 
unanimously approved. 



 

Adopt 2010 Calendar of Regular Meetings for the Wingate Board of Commissioners 
MOTION was made by Commissioner Stegall to adopt the following meeting schedule.  
MOTION was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Moser and was unanimously approved. 
 
The Board of Commissioners meets on the third Tuesday of each month at 7 PM in the Jesse 
Helms Center, unless the schedule is changed due to holidays or other conflicts. 

 
2010 Regular Meeting Schedule 

 
January 19 

 
February 16 

 
March 16 

 
April 20 

 
May 18 

 
June 15 

 
July 20 

 
August 17 

 
September 21 

 
October 19 

 
November 16 

 
December 21 

 
 
Parks and Recreation Trust Fund Application for Wingate Park at Highland Park Project 
This is very similar to our application submitted last year that was not selected.  The most 
notable change is the inclusion of a walking trail.  Our PARTF representative recommended 
that the walking trail be included in the application because the addition of a recreation 
amenity will make it more competitive.   

 
This PARTF grant requires a 50% match.  The Town’s cost, as proposed, will be $89,805.  This 
is approximately $13,000 more than what was proposed in last year’s application. 
 

I. Goal: 
To purchase .39 acre tract of land located on Booker Street, adjoining a .79 acre 
tract of land that the town currently owns, housing a small park.  A part of our 
goal is to convert the existing property on the .39 acre to a facility that will 
enhance the expanding of the town’s park.   
 

II. Program Elements: 
1. Purchase the .39 acre tract of land on Booker Street. 
2. Renovation of the existing building to a community center. 
3. Addition of a small picnic shelter to the back of the building. 
4. Addition of a ¼ mile walking path around and within the new park. 
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III. Project Cost: 
Renovating Costs: 
 Site Work, Concrete, Carpentry, Doors & Windows, 
 Finishes, Painting, Carpet, VCT, Plumbing, HVAC,  
 Electrical       $79,800 

Contingency (5%)       $  7,825 

Costs to Acquire Land (.39 acre)     $59,375 

Costs Related to Building, Renovating and Planning   $  8,660 

Walking Trail        $14,850 

Picnic Shelter        $  9,100 

Total Budget:                 $179,610 

 

State Grant (50%)    $  89,805 

Local Match (50%)    $  89,805 

Total Project    $179,610 

 
Commissioner Stegall asked if we must budget for this now.  Mr. Blanchard replied this 
would not be budgeted unless we are awarded and the Board votes to accept the grant. 
 
MOTION was made by Commissioner Stegall to approve the submission of the grant 
application.  MOTION was seconded by Commissioner Mangum and was unanimously approved.   
 
Mayor Braswell recessed the meeting from 8:21 to 8:32 PM. 
 
Governor’s Crime Commission Grant Application for Police Radios 
 

Chief Glass would like to submit a pre-application to the Governor’s Crime Commission to 
purchase police radios and shoulder mics that will be compatible with the new 800 MHz 
system being installed by Union County.  The new radios would be permanently mounted in 
the patrol cars and will compliment the handheld units that were purchased in December.   
 
MOTION was made by Mayor Pro Tem Moser to approve the submission of the grant pre-
application.  MOTION was seconded by Commissioner Mangum and was unanimously approved.   
  
Project Title:  “Radio Equipment 2010” 
 
Budget: 6 Stationary Radios, software, $4,900. x 6         $29,400  
  Installment / Programming,   $   350 x 6          $  2,100 

          (8) Shoulder Mic’s   $   200 x 8          $  1,600   
             $33,100 

 
   

Grant:    $16,550.00 
   Local Match:   $16,550.00 
   Total Project:   $33,100.00 
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Schedule Public Hearing to Receive Comments Related to Proposed Text Amendments 
MOTION was made by Commissioner Stegall to schedule the public hearing to receive 
comments related to the proposed text amendments for the Wingate Land Use Plan for 7:00 
PM on Tuesday, February 16 at the Helms Center.  MOTION was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
Moser   and was unanimously approved. 
    
Relay For Life Fundraiser at Community Center 
Mayor Pro Tem Moser conveyed a request from the local relay For Life to waive the usage fee for 
the community center for a fundraiser. 
MOTION was made by Commissioner Mangum to waive the community center rental fee for the 
Relay for Life pancake breakfast on the morning of Saturday, March 20, 2010.  MOTION was 
seconded by Mayor Pro Tm Moser and was unanimously approved. 
 
9.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

Being no additional business, Mayor Braswell entertained a motion to adjourn the meeting. 
MOTION was made by Mayor Pro Tem Moser to adjourn the meeting.  MOTION was seconded 
by Commissioner Stegall and was unanimously approved.  
The meeting was adjourned at 8:39 PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  

        
       
            ____________________________ 

 

        Bill G. Braswell, Mayor 
Attest:   
        

 
__________                  

________________      

  Karen M. Wingo, Town Clerk 
 
 


	2.  Approval of Minutes
	3.  Approval of Agenda




 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 


APPLICATION PROCESS TO SERVE ON WINGATE ABC BOARD 
 
 


 
The Town of Wingate appreciates your interest in serving on the new ABC Board that is being 
created as a result of the recent mixed beverage referendums approved in November, 2009.  
Three people will be appointed to serve on the ABC Board.  Applicants should understand that 
serving as a member of the ABC Board will require significant amounts of time and the term 
may be as long as three years. 
 
To apply, simply complete the steps below. 
 
1. Fill out the attached application.  Your application must be submitted to the Town Clerk by  


    to be considered.  All forms of application delivery are acceptable 
(mail, fax, email, or hand delivery). 


2. Attach a resume. 
 
Town Clerk Information: 
 
By Mail: 
Karen Wingo, Town Clerk 
Town of Wingate 
PO Box 367 
Wingate, NC  28174 


Hand Delivery: 
Karen Wingo, Town Clerk 
Town of Wingate 
3918 Highway 74 East 
Wingate, NC  28174 


  
Electronic: 
Fax:  (704)233-4412 
Email:  clerk@wingatenc.com 


 


 
3. Applicants will be contacted by the Clerk and scheduled for an interview by the Board of 


Commissioners.  These interviews will generally run 30 minutes or less.  If you are not able 
to make the interview, please contact the Town Clerk as far in advance as possible so it can 
be rescheduled 


 
4. The Town Clerk will notify you whether you have been appointed to the ABC Board.  You 


will then be invited to the next Board of Commissioners meeting to be sworn in.  After you 
are sworn in, you may attend the next scheduled ABC Board meeting. 
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APPLICATION TO SERVE ON WINGATE ABC BOARD 
 
 


NAME:  


PHYSICAL ADDRESS:  


MAILING ADDRESS:  


PHONE: (HOME)  (WORK)  (FAX)  


Email:  


Do you have any conflicts with night meetings:  Yes   No 


If yes, please explain:  


 


How long have you lived in the Town of Wingate?  


Name of any Town/County Board/Committees you are currently serving on: 


 


 


Business Experience:  


 


 


Civic Experience:  


 


 







 


Please explain your interest in serving on the Wingate ABC Board: 


 


 


 


 
 
Is there any possible conflict of interest defined in the North Carolina Statute GS 18B-201* that would create 
problems or prevent you from fairly and impartially discharging your duties as a member of the Wingate ABC 
Board? 
 


 Yes   No 


If yes, please explain:  


 
 
I certify that the facts contained in this application are true and correct to the best of my knowledge. 
 
 
             
Signature       Date 
 
*G.S. 18B-201 
(a) Financial Interests Restricted. – No person shall be appointed to or employed by the Commission, a local board, 
or the ALE Division if that person or a member of that person's family related to that person by blood or marriage to 
the first degree has or controls, directly or indirectly, a financial interest in any commercial alcoholic beverage 
enterprise, including any business required to have an ABC permit.  The Commission may exempt from this 
provision any person, other than a Commission member, when the financial interest in question is so insignificant or 
remote that it is unlikely to affect the person's official actions in any way.  Exemptions may be granted only to 
individuals, not to groups or classes of people, and each exemption shall be in writing, be available for public 
inspection, and contain a statement of the financial interest in question. 
 
(b) Self-dealing. – The provisions of G.S. 14-234 shall apply to the Commission and local boards. 
 
(c)  Dealing for Family Members. – Neither the Commission nor any local board shall contract or otherwise deal in 
any business matter so that a member's spouse or any person related to him by blood to a degree of first cousin or 
closer in any way benefits, directly or indirectly, from the transaction unless: 


 
(1)       The member whose relative benefits from the transaction abstains from participating in any way, 


including voting, in the decision; 
(2)       The minutes of the meeting at which the final decision is reached specifically note the member 


whose spouse or relative is benefited and the amount involved in each transaction; 
(3)       The next annual audit of the Commission or local board specifically notes the member and the 


amount involved in each transaction occurring during the year covered by the audit; and 
(4)       If the transaction is by a local board, the Commission is notified at least two weeks before final 


board approval of the transaction. (1981, c. 412, s. 2; 1993, c. 415, s. 4.) 
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STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 


COUNTY OF UNION 


THIS AGREEMENT, is made and entered into this the _ day of _ 
2010, by and among Union County, the Town of Hemby Bridge, the Town of Indian Trail, the 
Village of Lake Park, the Town of Marshville, the Village of Marvin, the Town of Mineral 
Springs, the City of Monroe, the Town of Stallings, the Town of Waxhaw, the Town of 
Weddington, the Village of Wesley Chapel, and the Town of Wingate. 


WIT N E SSE T H: 


WHEREAS, the parties recognize that trails and their green buffer areas provide the 
following public benefits: (1) they help improve the quality of the air we breathe by preserving 
trees and vegetation and by promoting non-motorized transportation, and will enhance the quality 
of our water through natural buffers and mitigation of storm water runoff; (2) they provide key 
amenities to neighborhoods and safe areas for our citizens and children to travel, exercise, play 
and connect with nature away from heavily trafficked areas; (3) they have significant impact on 
the economic viability of the region through increased levels of tourism, enhanced property 
values, added jobs related to the construction of and along the trail, as well as enhanced ability to 
attract and retain businesses to the region due to improved quality of life; and (4) they are freely 
accessible community assets offering opportunities for recreation and exercise to everyone, 
including children, youth and families, and provide safe places for people to experience a sense 
of community and create stronger social and family ties; and 


WHEREAS, many communities in the Union County region have taken a lead in 
planning and/or building local trails and greenways, and those efforts can be greatly enhanced by 
being connected to a larger regional network of trails such as that network proposed by Carolina 
Thread Trail, which is slated to connect fifteen counties and millions of citizens; and 


WHEREAS, N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160A-353 authorizes cities and counties to "set apart lands 
and buildings for ...recreational programs and facilities; ... provide, acquire, construct, equip, 
operate, and maintain ... recreation facilities, including all buildings, structures, and equipment 
necessary or useful in connection therewith; appropriate funds to carry out the provisions of this 
Article; [and] accept any ... grant ...of real or personal property for parks and recreation 
programs;" and 


WHEREAS, N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160A-355 authorizes any two or more units oflocal 
government to cooperate in establishing parks and recreation systems; and 
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WHEREAS, private funding is available to communities from the Carolina Thread Trail, 
a North Carolina non-profit organization, for planning and construction of regional trails, and 
this private funding will leverage public funding from federal, state and various sources; and 


WHEREAS, the parties desire to jointly apply for a $60,000 planning grant from Carolina 
Thread Trail (the "Planning Grant") that will cover the expenses of the creation of a plan for a 
system of greenways and trails in the jurisdictions of the parties to this Agreement (the "Trail 
Plan"); and 


WHEREAS, the parties desire to contribute an amount, indicated in this Agreement and 
based on their relative populations, to the Planning Grant's ten percent cost share requirement of 
$6,000; and 


WHEREAS, the parties desire for the Town ofIndian Trail to serve as the administrative 
lead for the Planning Grant application process; and 


WHEREAS, the parties desire to establish a Carolina Thread Trail Steering Committee 
and a Carolina Thread Trail Technical Committee that will coordinate with the Carolina Thread 
Trail and the Town of Indian Trail on the Planning Grant application, and that will advise the 
planner assigned under the Planning Grant as to the development of the Trail Plan; and 


WHEREAS, this Agreement is made under the authority ofN.C. Gen. Stat. § 160A-460 
et seq. 


NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements 
hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto do each contract and agree with the other as follows: 


1. The parties agree to contribute to the ten percent cost share requirement of the 
Planning Grant as indicated below. The amount of each party's contribution has been 
determined based on each municipality's population and Union County's population in the 
unincorporated areas of the County. Based on these relative populations, the parties agree to 
contribute to the cost share requirement of the Planning Grant as follows: 


Town of Hemby Bridge: $61.17
 
Town of Indian Trail: $855.85
 
Village of Lake Park: $105.39
 
Town of Marshville: $98.78
 
Village of Marvin: $86.84
 
Town of Mineral Springs: $79.00
 
City of MOllfoe: $1,183.46
 
Town of Stallings: $372.84
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Town of Waxhaw: $124.64
 
Town of Weddington: $312.46
 
Village of Wesley Chapel: $157.71
 
Town of Wingate: $133.96
 
Union County: $2,427.90
 


The parties shall pay the aforementioned amounts upon and in accordance with direction 
provided by the Town of Indian Trail, which shall serve as the administrative lead for the 
Planning Grant application. 


2. The Carolina Thread Trail Steering Committee, hereinafter referred to as the "Steering 
Committee," is hereby established. Each party to this Agreement shall appoint one person to 
serve on the Steering Committee, who shall serve at the pleasure of the party who appointed 
him/her. The Steering Committee shall be responsible for coordinating with the Town of Indian 
Trail and the Carolina Thread Trail on the Planning Grant application, as well as for working 
with and advising the planner assigned under the Planning Grant on the Trail Plan. 


3. The Carolina Thread Trail Technical Committee, hereinafter referred to as the 
"Technical Committee" is hereby established. Each party to this Agreement shall appoint one 
person to serve on the Technical Committee, who shall serve at the pleasure of the party who 
appointed him/her. It is anticipated that Technical Committee members will have some degree of 
technical expertise that will be helpful in the trail planning process. The Technical Committee 
shall be responsible for coordinating with the Town of Indian Trail and the Carolina Thread Trail 
on the Planning Grant application, as well as for working with and advising the planner assigned 
under the Planning Grant on the Trail Plan. 


4. The parties agree that if any party does not contribute its respective share of the cost 
share requirement, as required by Section 1 of this Agreement, that such party shall no longer 
have the right to appoint (or maintain the appointment) of a member to the Steering Committee 
nor shall such party have the right to appoint (or maintain the appointment) of a member to the 
Technical Committee. Furthermore, a party who fails to contribute its respective share of the 
cost share requirement, as required by Section 1 of this Agreement, shall have no right to advise 
the planner assigned under the Planning Grant or otherwise contribute to the Trail Plan. 


5. Each party to this Agreement shall have the right to withdraw its participation under 
this Agreement at any time upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other parties to this 
Agreement. A withdrawal of this nature shall not otherwise affect the effectiveness of this 
Agreement as to the other parties. 


6. This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of which shall be an original, with 
the same effect as if the signatures thereto and hereto were upon the same instrument. The 
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parties hereto confirm that any facsimile copy or photocopy of another party's executed 
counterpart of this Agreement (or its signature page thereof) will be deemed to be an executed 
original thereof. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this instrument to be executed 
the day and year above written. 


TOWN OF HEMBY BRIDGE: 


By: _Attest: ------------ ­


This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act. 


Finance Director 


TOWN OF INDIAN TRAIL:
 


Attest: By: _
 


This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget
 
and Fiscal Control Act. 


Finance Director
 


VILLAGE OF LAKE PARK:
 


Attest: By:
 


This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget
 
and Fiscal Control Act. 


Finance Director
 


TOWN OF MARSHVILLE:
 


Attest: _ By: _
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This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act. 


Finance Director 


VILLAGE OF MARVIN:
 


Attest: _ By: _
 


This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act. 


Finance Director 


TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS:
 


Attest: By:
 


This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act. 


Finance Director 


CITY OF MONROE:
 


Attest: _ By:
 


This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 
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Finance Director 
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Attest: By:
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Finance Director 
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This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget
 
and Fiscal Control Act. 


Finance Director
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Attest: _ By: __~- ~ _
 


This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget
 
and Fiscal Control Act. 


Finance Director 


TOWN OF WINGATE: 


Attest: By: ~~- _ 
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and Fiscal Control Act.
 


Finance Director 


Page 7 of 7 












TOWN OF WINGATE


NORTH CAROLINA


Audited


Financial Statements


And


Other Financial Information


At


Jnne 30, 2009


And


For The Year Then Ended


* * * * * * * * *



karen.wingo

Typewritten Text



karen.wingo

Text Box

Attachment A







TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Table of Contents


June 30, 2009


Finaneial Section:


Independent Auditor's Report 1-2


Management's Discussion and Analysis 3-17


Basic Financial Statements:


Government-wide Financial Statements:


Statement of Net Assets............................................................................................. 18


Statement of Activities 19


Fund Financial Statements:


Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 20


Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds. 21


Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities.............. 22


Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Annual Budget and Actual - General Fund 23


Statement of Fund Net Assets - Proprietary Funds 24


Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets -
Proprietary Funds 25


Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds 26-27


Notes to the Financial Statements 28-41







TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Table of Contents (Continued)


June 30, 2009


Individual Fund Statements and Schedules:


Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances - Budget and Actual - General Fund 42-44


Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances - Budget and Actual - Water and Sewer Fund 45-46


Other Schedules:


Schedules of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable 47


Analysis of Current Tax Levy - Town-Wide Levy 48


Compliance Section:


Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance
With Government Auditing Standards 49-50







Independent Auditor's Report


To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the Board of Commissioners
Wingate, North Carolina


We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental actIvItIes, the
business-type activities and each major fund of the Town of Wingate, North Carolina, as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Town of Wingate's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these basic
financial statements based on our audit.


We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
basic financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.


In our opinion, based on our audit, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities and each major fund of the Town of Wingate, North Carolina as of June 30, 2009, the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where appropriate, and the respective
budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.


Management's Discussion and Analysis is not a required part of the basic financial statements
but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
We have applied certain limited procedures, consisting principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation to the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit this information and express no opinion thereon.







In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our repOli dated
October 9, 2009 on our consideration of Town of Wingate's internal control over financial
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts
and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results
of our audit.


Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
of the Town of Wingate taken as a whole. The individual fund financial statements and
schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required pmi of the
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.


October 9, 2009
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Management's Discussion and Analysis


For the Year Ended June 30, 2009


As management of the Town of Wingate, we offer readers of the Town of Wingate's financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town of Wingate
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. We encourage readers to read the information presented
here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in the Town of Wingate's
financial statements, which follow this narrative.


Financial Highlights


• The assets of the Town of Wingate exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year
by $4,814,778.


• The government's total net assets increased by $70,105 primarily due to conservative
spending during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009.


• As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Town of Wingate's governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $957,286, an increase of $51,975 over the
prior year. Approximately forty-six percent (45.7%) of this total amount, or $437,038, is
available for spending at the government's discretion.


• At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was
$437,038 or 36.4% of total general fund expenditures for the fiscal year.


• The Town of Wingate's long term debt decreased by $49,005 (13.9%) during the current
fiscal year. The key factor in this decrease was that the Town took out a minimal amount
of additional debt during the year and made significant payments on long-term debt
obligations.


Overview of the Financial Statements


This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Town of Wingate's basic
financial statements. The Town's basic financial statements consist of three components; 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial
statements (see Figure I). The basic financial statements present two different views of the Town
through the use of government-wide statements and fund financial statements. In addition to the
basic financial statements, this report contains other supplemental information that will enhance
the reader's understanding of the financial condition of the Town of Wingate.
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
For The Year Ended June 30, 2009


Requil'ed Components of Annual Financial Report


Figure I


Management's Basic


Discussion and Financial


Analysis Statements


I I
Government-wide Fund Financial Notes to the


Financial Statements Financial


Statements Statements


Summary


Basic Financial Statements


----------..~ Detail


The first two statements (pages 18-19) in the basic financial statements are the Government­
wide Financial Statements. They provide both short and long-term information about the
Town's financial status.


The next statements (pages 20-27) are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on
the activities of the individual parts of the Town government. These statements provide more
detail than the government-wide statements. There are three parts to the Fund Financial
Statements: I) the governmental funds statements; 2) the budgetary comparison statements; and
3) the proprietary fund statements.


The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial
statements explain in detail some of the data contained in those statements. After the


-4-







TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
For Thc Year Ended June 30, 2009


The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial
statements explain in detail some of the data contained in those statements. After the notes,
supplemental information is provided to show details about the Town's individual funds.
Budgetary information required by the General Statutes also can be found in this part of the
statements.


Government-wide Financial Statements


The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad
overview of the Town's finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector
business. The government-wide statements provide short and long-term information about the
Town's financial status as a whole.


The two government-wide statements report the Town's net assets and how they have changed.
Net assets are the difference between the Town's total assets and total liabilities. Measuring net
assets is one way to gauge the Town's financial condition.


The government-wide statements are divided into three categories: I) governmental activities; 2)
business-type activities; and 3) component units. The governmental activities include most of
the Town's basic services such as public safety, parks and recreation, and general administration.
Property taxes and state and federal grant funds finance most of these activities. The business­


type activities are those that the Town charges customers to provide. These include the water
and sewer services offered by the Town of Wingate.


The government-wide financial statements are on Pages 18 and 19 this report.


Fund Financial Statements


The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the Town's most significant
actlVltles. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activitics or objectives. The Town, like all other
governmental entities in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance
(or non-compliance) with finance-related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes or the
Town's budget ordinance. All of the funds of Wingate can be divided into two categories:
governmental funds and proprietary funds.


Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the Town's
basic services are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can
readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that will
be available for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are reported using an
accounting method called modified accrual accounting that provides a short-term spending
focus. As a result, the
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
For The Year Ended June 30, 2009


governmental fund financial statemcnts give the reader a detailed short-term view that helps him
or her determine if there are more or less financial resourees available to finance the Town's
programs. The relationship between government activities (reported in the Statement of Net
Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation
that is a part of the fund financial statements.


'rhe Town adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General Statutes.
The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the Town,
the management of the Town, and the decisions of the Board about which serviees to provide
and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the Town to obtain funds from identified sources to
finance these current period aetivities. The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund
demonstrates how well the Town eomplied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the
Town succeeded in providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The
budgetary comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using
the same format, language, and classifications as the legal budget document. The statement
shows four eolumns: 1) the original budget as adopted by the board; 2) the final budget as
amended by the board; 3) the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending balances in
the General Fund; and 4) the difference or variance between the final budget and the actual
resources and eharges. To aecount for the difference between the budgetary basis of accounting
and thc modified accrual basis, a reconciliation showing the differences in the reported activities
is shown at the end of the budgetary statement.


Proprietary Funds - Wingate has one kind of proprietary fund. The Enterprise Fund is used to
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide finaneial
statements. Wingate uses an Enterprise Fund to account for its water and sewer activity and
operations. This Fund is the same as those functions shown in the business-type activities in the
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Aetivities.


Notes to the Financial Statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential
to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial
statements. The notes to the financial statements are on pages 28 through 41 of this report.
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
For The Year Ended June 30,2009


Government-Wide Financial Analysis


The Town of Wingate's Net Assets
Figure 2


Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total


2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008


Currenl and at her assets $ 1,128,759 $ 1,066,958 $ 891,791 $ 913,995 $ 2,020,550 $ 1,982,953
Capital assets 1,646,328 1,657,724 1,668,633 1,685,386 3,314,961 3,343,110


Tolal assets 2,775,087 2,726,682 2,560,424 2,599,381 5,335,511 5,326,063


Long..term liabilities outstanding 117,328 110,444 116,805 163,840 234,133 274,284
Other liabilities 145,291 141,435 141,309 165,671 286,600 307,106


Tolalliabilities 262,619 251,879 258,114 329,511 520,733 581,390


Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, nel of
related debt 1,504,745 1,512,472 1,504,780 1,476,197 3,009,525 2,988,669


Restricted 350,533 340,096 350,533 340,096
Unrestricted 657,190 622,235 797,530 793,673 1,454,720 1,415,908


Total net assets $ 2,512,468 $ 2,474,803 $ 2,302,310 $ 2,269,870 $ 4,814,778 $ 4,744,673


As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government's
financial condition, The assets of the Town of Wingate exceeded liabilities by $4,814,778 as of
June 30, 2009, The Town's net assets increased by $70, I05 for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2009, The largest portion of the increase reflects the Town's increase in current and other assets
(e,g, land, buildings, machinery, and equipment) and a decrease in long-term and other liabilities.
The Town of Wingate uses these eapital assets to provide services to eitizens; eonsequently,


these assets are not available for future spending, Although the Town of Wingate's investment
in its capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the resourees needed to repay
that debt must be provided by other sourees, sinee the eapital assets cannot be used to liquidate
these liabilities, An additional portion of the Town of Wingate's net assets (7,3%) represents
resourees that are subject to external restrietions on how they may be used. The remaining
balance of$1,454,720 is unrestricted,


Two partieular aspects of the Town of Wingate's financial operations positively influeneed the
total unrestricted governmental net assets:


• The Town reduced its long-term and other liabilities by $60,657 by making significant
payments on outstanding long term debt


• The Town's current and other assets increased $37,597 primarily due to an increase in
year-end cash on hand attributable to conservative spending during throughout the fiscal
year
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
For The Year Ended June 30,2009


Town of Wingate Changes in Net Assets
Figure 3
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Management's Discnssionand Analysis (Continned)
For The Year Ended June 30, 2009


Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the Town of Wingate's net assets
by $37,665, thereby accounting for 53.7% of the total growth in the net assets of the Town of
Wingate. One key element related to the increase in net assets of the Town's governmental
activities is that ad valorem tax revenues increased $30,800.


Bnsiness-type activities: Business-type activities increased the Town's net assets by $32,440,
accounting for 46.3% of the total growth in the government's net assets. The increase is due to
the f~\ct that the Town kept expenditures below revenues received.


Financial Analysis of the Town of Wingate Fnnds


As noted earlier, the Town of Wingate uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.


Governmental Funds. The focus of the Town's governmental funds is to provide information
on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the Town's financing requirements. Specifically, unreserved fund balance can be a
useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal
year.


The general fund is the chief operating fund of the Town of Wingate. At the end of the current
fiscal year, unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $437,083, while total fund balance
reached $957,286. As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare
both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund
balance represents 36.4% of total General Fund expenditures.


At June 30, 2009, the governmental funds of the Town of Wingate reported a combined fund
balance of $957,286, a 5.7% increase over last year.


Budgetary Highlights: During the fiscal year, the Town of Wingate revised the budget on
several occasions. Generally, budget amendments fall into one of three categories: 1)
amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the original budget ordinance
once exact information is available; 2) amendments made to recognize new funding amounts
!i'om external sources, such as Federal and State grants; and 3) increases in appropriations that
become necessary to maintain services.


Four budget amendments were made during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009. The following
summary details the amounts and reasons for making the budget amendments.


Amendment Amount Explanation
07115/2008 $70,000.00 Funds were appropriated to purchase 2.76 acres of land on


South Main Street
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
For The Year Ended June 30, 2009


08119/2008 $9,800.00 Funds were appropriated to purehase multimedia
equipment, benehes, and landseaping for the eommunity
eenter.


12116/2008 $8,1 00.00 Funds were appropriated to develop a site plan for a Parks
and Reereation Trust Fund grant application as well as the
removal of debris from a burned home at 806 Independence
Drive


0611612009 $108,583.00 This amendment was an end-of-year amendment to balance
departmental spending so there would be no budget deficit.


Proprietary Funds. The Town of Wingate's proprietary funds provide the same type of
information found in the government-wide statements but in more detail. Unrestricted net assets
of the Water and Sewer Fund at the end of the fiscal year amounted to $797,530. The total
increase in unrestricted net assets for the fund was $3,857. Other faetors concerning the finanees
of these two fi.ll1ds have already been addressed in the discussion of the Town of Wingate's
business-type activities.


Capital Asset and Debt Administration


Capital assets. The Town of Wingate's investment in capital assets for its governmental and
business-type aetivities as of June 30, 2009, totals $3,314,961 (net of aceumulated depreciation).
These assets include buildings, roads and bridges, land, maehinery and equipment, park
facilities, and vehicles. The major eapital asset transaetions during the year were the purchase of
2.76 aeres of land on South Main Street and completion of the Town's streetscape project on
Highway 74 between Main Street and Camden Street.


Town of Wingate's Capital Assets
Figure 4


(net of depreciation)


Governmental Governmental Business-type Business-lype
Activities Activities Activities Activities Total Total


2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008


Land & Buildings $ 1,430.574 $ 1,423,140 $ 140,468 $ 70,135 $ 1,571,042 $ 1,493,275


Plan! & Distribution
Systems 1,297,264 1.350.569 1,297.264 1,350,569


Office Furniture &
Equipment 8,431 9,239 8.431 9,239


Equipment 43,221 58.692 230,901 264,682 274,122 323,374


Vehicles 110,502 107,819 110,502 107,819


Infrastructure 53,601 58,835 53,601 58,835


Total $ 1,646,328 $ 1,657,724 $ 1.668.633 $ 1,685,386 $ 3,314,961 $ 3,343,110
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
For The Year Ended June 30, 2009


Additional information on the Town of Wingate's capital assets can be found in Note C (pages
35 through 36) of the Basic Financial Statements.


The Town of Wingate's total debt decreased by $60,657 (10.4%) during the past fiscal year,
primarily due to the long-term debt repayments in excess of new debt accrued.


North Carolina general statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of
government can issue to 8 percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located within
that government's boundaries. The legal debt margin for Wingate is $10,255,553. The Town of
Wingate has $0 in bonds authorized but un-issued at June 30, 2009.


Additional information regarding the Town of Wingate's long-term debt can be found in Note H
beginning on page 39 of this report.


Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2010


$ 267,850


$ 108,550


$ 1,800


$ 8,500


$ 170,500


$ 10,000


$ 3,250


$ 14,275


$ 500


$ 65,000


$ 97,400


$ 40,000


$1,313,000


$ 485,600


$ 1,000


$ 6,150


$ 32,625


PROJECTED GENERAL FUND
REVENUE


FY 2009-2010


Ad Valorem Taxes


Privilege Licenses


Inte,'est Income


Miscellaneous Income


Park Facility Rental &
Concession Sales


Solid Waste Collection


Intergovernmental
Revenues


Grant Funds


Court Fees


Sales Tax
Reimbursement


Franchise Fees & Taxes


Fund Balance


Zoning Fees


Wingate University


Powell Bill


Streets Fund Balance


Since its incorporation, Wingate has struggled to
maintain adequate services while keeping its tax rate
competitive. This challenge is not different f)'om what
all municipalities face. However, Wingate is
especially challenged because more than 35% of the
property in Wingate is tax-exempt. To further
compound this problem, Union County chooses to
distribute local-option sales tax revenues using the ad
valorem basis. Under this formula, the County and
municipalities get a pro rata share of the local option
sales tax funds that are based on the amount of ad
valorem taxes levied by each entity. The large amount
of tax-exempt property in Wingate causes Wingate to
receive a disproportionately smaller share of these
revenues than other


economies.


General Fund


The development of an operating budget requires the establishment of priorities, and this budget
represents our attempt to address key areas essential to
the operation of the Town. Every attempt has been
made to keep all expenditures as low as possible while
still providing a high level of service. This is an
arduous task given Wingate's limited ability to raise
revenues that are comparable to other municipalities
its size and the dismal state of the national and local


Table I. Projected General Fund revenues, FY 2009·2010


-11-







TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
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municipalities in Union County. Additionally, sales tax revenues are estimated to be 11.4%
lower than those received last year.


With these points being made, the budget for the 2009 - 2010 fiscal year for the Town of
Wingate docs not include a tax increase. Many cuts and sacrifices have been made to maintain
the current tax rate of $0.39 per $100 in property value. There are no cost of living or merit
increases proposed in the budget and nearly all capital spending for equipment has been
eliminated. These are stop gap measures taken to balance the budget without a tax increase and
should be viewed as extreme actions that should not be repeated beyond one year.


Even with the current economic conditions and the extremely high proportion of tax-exempt
property, we urge you to remember that Wingate needs to increase its tax rate in the coming
years or develop new sources of operating revenues. This is a recommendation we have made in
past budget years, and is still one that bears repeating. Unless there is a rapid increase in
business and industrial development in Wingate, we do not foresee any change in General Fund
revenues that will allow Wingate to maintain its ad valorem tax rate at the current rate of $0.39
while still providing the same level of service. More than in most years, the problem of
balancing the budget has been compounded by the state of the U.S. economy.


$120 1
S100 i


H~Jl{lfr-
200820072006


Property Tax Revenues Per Capita
(constant dollars)


20052004


Over the past five years, the
Town has had to operate on
fewer and fewer property tax
dollars per capita. Adjusting for
inf1ation, ad valorem tax
revenues received were 29.9%
less ($33.78) per person in 2008
than in 2004. Chart 1 shows the
steady decline in ad valorem
taxes. In 2004, the per
capita property taxes Chari I. PrO]lerl)' lax revenues Jlcr caillta, 2004-2008


received were $113.07. Adjusting for inf1ation, 2008's ad valorem tax receipts were $79.29 per
capita.


Property tax revenues should be considered separately from other revenues because the town
relies heavily on them. A decline or a diminished growth rate in property taxes can have a
number of causes. First, it may ref1ect an overall decline in property values resulting from the
aging of buildings, a decline in local economic health, or a decline in total number of
households, which can depress the housing market. Second, it may result from unwilling default
on property taxes by property owners. Third, it may result from inefficient assessment or
appraisal. Finally, a decline can be caused by deliberate default by property owners, who realize
that delinquency penalties are less than short-run interest rates and that nonpayment is therefore
an economical way to borrow money.
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Current ad valorem taxes are only one of several major sources of revenue for the Town. Other
major sources of revenue include, local option sales taxes, utility franchise taxes, beer and wine
taxes, Powell Bill funds, and funds from Wingate University to provide police services.
Together, these amount to $430,250, 32.8% of General Fund revenues.


Wingate is now providing more quality services to its citizens than at any time during its history.
It also provides those services very efficiently. Wingate currently provides its citizens with a


ii.IlI-time police department, street lights, street maintenance and repair, land use planning and
zoning enforcement, nuisance abatement and code enforcement, contracted fire service from the
Wingate Volunteer Fire Department, parks and recreation, operation and maintenance of the
'fown cemetery, and general administration. Wingate continues to provide a higher level of
service at a lower cost than other municipalities our size.


General Fund Expenditures Per Capita
(Constant Dollars)


$450


$400


$350


... $300
cg $250


~ $200
$150


$100


S50
so , , ,. - _ , _,


Chart 2 shows that the Town has
had declining General Fund
expenditures per capita. In 2003
the average per capita
expenditures were $415.52.
However, over five years, it
declined to $197.39, a reduction
of52.5%.


2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Char! 2. Gelleral '10'1""""" ·CX····,"····,"···..li(·"'·.·t·,~·.·"." ,"'a"p"j'Il"',,'-20·04·.·2·0·0..'············· ..· ~.,., .. -- _ , , --_ , Changes in per capita


expenditures reflect changes in
expenditures relative to changes in population. Increasing per capita expenditures can indicate
that the cost of providing services is outstripping the community's ability to pay, especially if
spending is increasing faster than the residents' collective personal income. From a different
perspective, if the increase in spending is greater than can be accounted for by inflation or the
addition of new services, it may indicate declining productivity; that is, that the government is
spending more real dollars to support the same level of services. None of this is the case for
Wingate. The Board of Commissioners, department heads, and Town Administrator are working
diligently to reduce spending while continuing to deliver quality services. Chart 2 above shows
that hom 2004 - 2008 there has been a decline in General Fund expenditures per capita. Further,
it shows that expenditures pCI' capita have remained at virtually the same level for the past four
years.
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
For The Year Ended June 30, 2009


In total, there is a deerease of 3.7% in the Water and
Sewer Enterprise Fund budget. Operation of the Town's
water and wastewater system is expeeted to continue as it
has in the past. During the FY 20 I0 budget year, there
will be an 8% increase needed in the base and gallon
charges for monthly utility fees. This increase is partly
required because Union County, the Town's water
providor is raising its per gallon charge from $1.51 IS to
$1.5645 per 1,000 gallons. This cost is being passed on to
the customers effective July Ist. The additional increase is
required to keep the Enterprise Fund operating on a true
user pay system. If the Town's supplier raises rates
midyear, the town will have no choice but to also raise
rates. Wingate purchases its water and sewer capacity
from Union County, thus it is only logical that the Town
has to pass any wholesale rate increases through to the
user.


21,000


6,600


1,250


23,000


4,000


$ 550,800
$ 9,900
$ 1,500
$ 6,000
$1,012,850


$


$


$


$


$


$ 388,800


PROJECTED ENTERPRISE FUND
REVENUES
FY 2009-2010


'Vater Sales


Penalties & Reconnect


Fees


Water Tap Fees


Interest, Water


Property Rental


Fund Balance, Water


Wastewater User
Charges


Sewer Tap Fees
Interest Income, Sewer
Fund Balance, Sewer


Table 2. Projected \Vater and Sewer Fund Revenues,
1"\'2009 • 201 ()


Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund
As was discussed earlier, the Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund is solely used to operate the
water and sewer utility systems of Wingate. No funds from the Water and Sewer Enterprise


Fund and the General Fund are eommingled. The water
and sewer utility systems are totally funded by the users.


Over the last four years, the Town has been working to make sure the Enterprise Fund does not
operate with a budget shortfall. Chart 3 shows the losses and gains in the Enterprise Fund from
2004 through 2008. Any surplus realized in the Enterprise Fund can be used for future repair
and expansion of the water and sewer systems. The chart shows a positive trend with operations
without a loss since 2005. It is imperative to continue operating without a loss to prevent
additional deferred maintenance and sharp fee increases.


Enterprise Operating Results
(Constant Dollars)


$50,000


$150,000 .


$100,000 .


Enterprise losses are a special and highly visible type of operating deficit because enterprise fund
programs are expected to
function as if they were
commercially operated private
entities, rather than
governmental "not for profIt"
entities. 'fhis means that the
costs (expenses, including


$(50,000) .


$(100,000)


$(150,000)


2004 2005 2006


Chan 3. Waler & Sewer opcfming grtins and losses, 2004-2008
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
For The Year Ended June 30, 2009


depreciation) of providing goods and services to the public are to be recovered through user
charges. Additionally, enterprise operations may need to issue revenue bonds to finance capital
improvement projects, and the interest rates and covenants associated with the issuance of such
bonds can be significantly affected by the operating position of the enterprise. Since 2005,
Wingate has not had a loss in its Enterprise Fund. This surplus is expected to be used for major
repair expenditures over the next five years.


-.I2008 _....__ ... 12007


$- 1---


2004 2005 2006
ellarl4. Walcr'8tSc'\i;cl:'i:c\;C-li\'lCS'0ci:-c'iil')ifii~-10Ulf:2-008-----------------


An interesting point to be made is that while the Enterprise Fund has been realizing surpluses in
recent years, Chart 4 shows that revenue per capita has been decreasing. When analyzed
together, it shows that Enterprise Fund operations have become leaner and more efficient, and


~~~~~~~~al re~~~::s ha~~si~:e:~ 1:,-5: --;'~-;'~-~-;;-~-;-';~~?~~t~:~~j~'/~~:;;-;~;;~~----


customers. For citizens,
$200


this is positive because business,
industrial, and institutional $150


customers help lessen the 1$100


burden on residential customers. ;
$50


However, economic downturns
that cause businesses to reduce


operations, relocate, or elose could eause rates to increase for the average citizen.


Even though there is no expansion planned for the water and
sewer systems, there is a need to make substantial repairs
and upgrades. Among the needed work to be performed are
replacement of the water line on Bivens Street and
rehabilitation of the sewer collection system.


$ 143,960


$ 26,880


$ 4,900


$ 6,000


$ 150,000


$ 23,950


$ 5,500


$ 19,000


$ 5,500


$ 1,200


$ 20,000


$ 406,890


Water Department


PROJECTED ENTERPRISE
FUND EXPENDITURES


FY 2009-2010


Professional Services


Billing Postage


Operations


Equipment


Miscellaneous


Depreciation


Salaries


Maintenance & Repair


Supplies


Water Testing


Water Purchased


Water and Wastewater Enterprise Fund Expenditures
Likc the cxpenditures of the General Fund, the Enterprise Fund is proposed for continuation of
existing serviees with no planned expansion. All salaries in the Water and Sewer Enterprise
Fund have been frozen because revenues are anticipated to be flat or slightly lower for the


coming year. Nearly all capital equipment costs have been
eliminated for the coming year. This action is being taken
to minimize the fee increase that is necessary to continue
operation of the utility systems. This action can not be
continued beyond one year or the town will risk
compounding large expenditures that will be necessary to
replace expensive equipment.


']':lblc 4. I'rujCtlcd wntcr departillellt expenditures, _ 15-
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
For The Year Ended June 30,2009


During the past two years, the public works department identified several large water leaks that
were estimated to have occurred for a long amount of time. The elimination of these leaks has
greatly reduced the amount of water used. When analyzing usage from the same period a year
ago, daily consumption is approximately 29% lower.


One area with a particularly high incidence of line failure is the water line serving Bivens Street.
This 6-inch, asbestos concrete pipe is especially ii'agile and has been prone to breaks for more
than ten years. Point repairs have been performed, and a portion of it was replaced, but the
breaks continue to occur. The Town will need to replace this water line in the coming year. The
breaks typically occur in frigid temperatures and all customers are forced to go without water
everytime the breaks occur. This is because the
line is not connected to the water system on both ends; it is a dead end line. Initial engineering
estimates to replace the pipe total $300,000. This is another project that is not funded in this
budget proposal, but will need be added through an amendment as the project gets closer to
becoming a reality.


Sewer Department


PROJECTED ENTERPRISE
FUND EXPENDITURES


FY 2009-2010


$ 211,465


$ 12,000


$ 500


$ 235,000


$ 52,500


$ 36,750


$ 29,225


$ 3,850


$ 2,170


$ 2,500


$ 20,000


$ 605,960


Professional Services


Operations


Billing Postage


Equipment


Miscell~lneous


Depreciation


Maintenance & Repair
Supplies


Treatment Cost


Debt SerYiee


Another project not funded in this proposed budget is repair of the failing wastewater system.
Based on several sanitary sewer evaluation studies that
have been completed over the past eight years, the Town
will address extensive repairs that need to be made. The
Town has received two grants totaling $1.8 million dollars.
The North Carolina Clean Water Management Trust Fund


(CWMTF) approved two grant applications to provide
Salariesfunding to rehabilitate 29,000 linear feet of sewer


collection lines, ISO manholes, and all sewer taps in the
project area. This comprehensive project will completely
renovate approximately one-third of the entire sewer
collection system. The total project is estimated to cost
$2.6 million, Up to $800,000 will be provided by the town
to match the grant funds from the CWMTF. There is
currently one grant application through the North Carolina
Rural Center that we are awaiting a decision on. If
awarded the Town will likely be able to provide matching
funds without requiring a loan, If thc grant is not
approved, the matching funds are expected to come from a
low intcrest, long-term loan from the U.S. Department of


Tahle S. Projected sewcI' departlllellt expenditul'es,
Agriculture'S Rural Development program and/or the State FY2009·2010


Revolving Loan Fund.
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
For The Year Ended June 30, 2009


Repairing a large part of the sewer collection system will reduee the amount of rain and ground
water that enters the sewer system. During heavy rain events, there is a great deal of inflow and
infiltration (1&1) that enters the system. Inflow is defined as water that directly enters the
wastewater system. An example would be a storm drain pipe that is tied direetly into the
wastewater system. Inflow begins and ends at nearly the same timeas the rain that causes it.
Infiltration is characterized by flow that enters the wastewater system as groundwater. After a
rain event, the rain seeps into the ground and raises the water table. The high groundwater then
leaks through any crack or hole that is in the wastewater system. Infiltration can last for days
after a rain event and is extremely expensive because all of the water must be treated at a
wastewater treatment plant and is not directly billed to any particular customer.


Requests for Information
This report is designed to provide an overview of the Town of Wingate finances for those with
an interest in this area. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or
requests for additional information should be directed to the Wingate Finance Officer, Karen
Wingo, PO Box 3918 Highway 74 East, Wingate, North Carolina 28174, (704)233-4411, or by
email atclerk@wingatenc.com.
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Statement of Net Assets


June 30, 2009


Primary Government
Governmental Business-type


Activities Activities Total
ASSETS


Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 947,182 $ 771,685 $1,718,867
Taxes receivable (net) 150,019 150,019
Accounts reeeivable (net) 24,866 120,106 144,972
Prepaid expenses 6,692 6,692


Total current assets 1,128,759 891,791 2,020,550


Capital assets:
Land, non-depreciable improvements,


and eonstruction in progress 126,622 140,468 267,090
Other capital assets,


net of depreeiation 1,519,706 1,528,165 3,047,871


Total capital assets 1,646,328 1,668,633 3,314,961


Total assets $ 2,775,087 $ 2,560,424 $ 5,335,511


LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:


Accounts payable $ 119,811 $ 76,381 $ 196,192
Customer deposits 1,225 17,880 19,105


Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year 24,255 47,048 71,303
Due in more than one year 117,328 116,805 234,133


Total liabilities 262,619 258,114 520,733


NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 1,504,745 1,504,780 3,009,525
Restricted for


Streets - Powell Bill 350,533 350,533
Unrestricted 657,190 797,530 1,454,720


Total net assets $ 2,512~468 ~~UQ,2,31Q $ 4814778
."._--~ _..- .


The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Statement of Activities


June 30, 2009


S 344,043 S 3,295
433,796 63,916
139,416
158,975 173,185
72,388 13,312
12,856 18,228
5,779


1.167,253 271.936


894.988 916.142


894.988 __916.142


~ ;wJ_62241 S 1 JJlJi,QI§


Program Revenues
Operating Grants Capital Grants


and and
Contributions Contributions


Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes Assets
Primarv Government


21,154


2 l.l 54


Total


~_.Q4j2f2,)


21.154


2 l,l 54


Business
Activities


~_.JI.L5A


S (340,748) S S (340,748)
(369,880) (369,880)


(15,865) (15,865)
14,210 14,210


(53,690) (53,690)
5,372 5,372


(5.779) (5.779)


(766.380) (766.380)


S~~Qj


Governmental
Activities


5,387


14,117


19.504


s


S_.J_9~5.0A


109,434


109.434


S L02,A.14


S


Charges for
ServicesExpenses


Total Primary Government


Functions/Programs
Primary Government


Governmental Activities:
General government
Public safety
Transportation
Environmental protection
Cultural and recreation
Other
Interest on long-term debt


Total governmental
activities


Business-type activities:
Water and sewer


Total business-type
activities


General revenues:
Taxes:


Property,taxes, levied for general purpose
Other taxes


Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs
Unrestricted investment earnings
Miscellaneous


Transfers:
Total general revenues and transfers


Change in net assets


Net assets, beginning of year


Net assets, end of year


511,470 511,470
283,397 283,397


9,176 11,286 20,462


804.043 __1_1.286 815.329


37,665 32,440 70,105


2,474.803 2.269.870 4.744.673


S...2512468 S20302310 S 4.8112.7.3


The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Balance Sheet


Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009


ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net


Taxes
Grants
Other


Prepaid expense
Tota I assets


Major Funds
General


$ 947,182


150,019


24,866
6,692


Non-Major
Funds


$


Total
Governmental


Funds


$ 947,182


150,019


24,866
6,692


$


Total liabilities and fund balances ji,J,J,~25,2,


LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:


Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities


DefclTed revenue
Deposits


Total liabilities


Fund balances:
Reserved for:


State statute
Streets-Powell bill


Unreserved, General Fund
Designated for subsequent years'


expenditures
LJ ndesignated


Total fund balances


78,786
91,462


1,225


155,395
350,533


14,275
437,083
957,286


$ $ 78,786
91,462


~---:-=-,1",",225


.•~17J,:,I];J


155,395
350,533


14,275
437,083
957,286


jiJ,12il,Z?2


Amounts repolied for governmental activities in the
statement of net assets arc different because:


Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and thcrefore arc not reported in thc funds.


Liabilities for earned but defcrred revcnucs in fund
statements.


Liabilities, not due and payable in the current period
and therefore not reported in the funds.


Net assets of governmental activities.


The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance


Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009


Total
Major Funds Non-Major Governmental


General Funds Funds


REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes $ 513,601 $ $ 513,601
Other taxes and licenses 2,328 2,328
Unrestricted intergovernmental 279,479 279,479
Restricted intergovernmental 130,529 130,529
Permits and fees 3,296 3,296
Sales and services 250,414 250,414
Investment earnings 9,176 9,176
MisceIIaneous 18,228 18,228


Total revenues 1,207,051 1,207,051


EXPENDITURES
Current:


General government 217,195 217,195
Public Safety 496,225 496,225
Transportation 167,501 167,501
Cu Iture and recreation 92,876 92,876
Environmental protection 158,975 158,975
Other 9,856 9,856


Debt service:
Principal 52,452 52,452
Interest and other charges 5,779 5.779


Total expenditures 1,100,859 1,200,859


Excess (deficiency) of
Revenues over expenditures 6,192 6,192


onnm FINANCIAL SOURCES (USES)
Donations (3,000) (3,000)
Proceeds fi'om long-term debt 48,783 48,783
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Transfer from other funds
Transfer to other funds
Appropriate fund balance


Total other financing
sources (uses) 45,783 45,783


Net change in fund balance 51,975 51,975


Fund balance, beginning of year 905,311 905,311
Fund balance. end of year $ .2;?Z,2!LQ $ ..••.J.;?L21(i


The notes to the linancial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance


Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009


Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds


Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:


Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures.
However, in the government-wide statement of activities
and changes in net assets, the cost of those assets
is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense. This is the amount of eapital assets
reeorded in the eurrent period


The net effect of various transaetions involving capital assets
(i.e., sales, trade ins, and eontributions) is to decrease net assets


Depreeiation expense on capital assets is reported in the
government-wide statement of activities and ehanges in
net assets, but they do not require the use of current finaneial
resourees. 'fherefore, depreeiation expense is not reported
as expenditure in governmental funds.


The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial
resourccs to governmental funds, while the repayment of
thc principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial
resources of governmental funds. Ncither transaction, however,
has any cffect on net assets.


$ 51,975


111,001


(122,397)


Proceeds from long term debt
Notes payable retirement


(48,783)
52,452 3,669


Some expcnscs reported in the statement of activities do not
require the use of current financial resources; therefore, are
not reported as expenditures in governmental funds


Some property tax revenues will not be collected for several
months after the city's fiscal year end. These are not considered
"available" revenues in the governmental funds until received.


Total changes in net assets of governmental activities


Thc notes to the fInancial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Statcmcnt of Rcvcnucs, Expcnditurcs, and Changcs in Fund Balancc - Budgct and Actnal


Gcncral Fund
For thc Ycar Endcd Junc 30, 2009


General Fund
Variance with
Final Budget


Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)


Revcnues
Ad valorem taxes $ 505,793 $ 489,209 $ 513,601 $ 24,392
Other taxes and licenses 1,202 1,202 2,328 1,126
Unrestricted intergovernmental 292,850 297,450 279,479 (17,971)
Restricted intergovernmental 179,700 114,700 130,529 15,829
Permits and fees 7,500 2,500 3,296 796
Sales and services 244,500 244,300 250,414 6,114
Investment earnings 18,000 7,816 9,176 1,360
Miscellaneous 36,865 20,650 18,228 (2,422)


Total revenues 1,286,410 1, 177.827 1,207,051 29,223


Expcnditurcs
Current:
General government 263,090 244,707 217,195 27,512
Public safety 597,475 475,475 496,225 (20,750)
Transportation J 71,675 192,775 167,501 25,274
Cultural and recrcation 67,475 96,075 92,876 3,199
Environmcntal protection 163,900 163,900 158,975 4,925
Other 14,250 11,250 9,856 1,394


Dcbt service:
Principal retircmcnt 28,650 28,650 52,452 (23,802)
Interest and other chargcs 5,000 5,000 5,779 (779)


Total expenditures 1,3 II ,515 1,217,832 -L~00,859 16,973


Rcvenues over (under) expenditures (25, I05) (40,005) 6,192 46,196


Othcr linancing sourccs (uscs)
Donations (3,000) (3,000) (3,000)
Procceds hom long-term debt 48,783 48,783
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Transfers from other funds
'Transfers to other funds
Appropriated fund balance 28,1 05 43,005 (43,005)


Total other financing sources (uses) 25,105 40,005 45,783 (5,778)


Revenues ancl other sources over
(under) expenditures and other uses 51,975


Fund balances, beginning of year 905,311
Fund balances, end of year L"25},1~i,1


The notcs to the financial statements arc an integral part of this statement
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Statement of Net Assets


Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009


Enterprise Funds
Water and


Sewer Fund Total
ASSETS


Current assets:
Cash and eash equivalents
Aeeounts receivable (net)


Total eurrent assets


Capital assets:
Land and other non-depreciable assets
Other eapital assets, net of depreciation


Capital assets (net)


Total assets


LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:


Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Customer deposits
Current portion of long-term debt


Total current liabilities


Non-current liabilities:
Long-term debt


Total non-current liabilities


Total liabilities


NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted


Total net assets


$ 771,685 $ 771,685
120,1 06 120,1 06


891,791 891,791


140,468 140,468
1,528,165 1,528,165


1,668,633 1,668,633


L£j6QA24 $ 2,560,;ll1


76,381 76,381
17,880 17,880
47,048 47,048


141,309 141,309


116,805 116,805


116,805 116,805


258,114 258,114


1,504,780 1,504,780
797,530 797,530


U3Q2,310 $~,)02)lQ


The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Statcmcnt of Rcvcnucs, Expcnscs, and Changcs in Fund Nct Asscts


Proprictary Funds
For thc Ycar Endcd June 30, 2009


OPERATING REVENUES
Water sales
Sewer charges
Water and sewer taps
Other operating revenues


Total operating revenues


OPERATING EXPENSES
Water operations
Sewer operations
Depreciation


Total operating expenses


Opcrating incomc (loss)


NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings
Interest expense


Total non-operating revenue (expenses)


Incomc (loss) bcforc contributions and transfers


Entcrprisc Funds
Watcr and


Scwcr Fund Total


$ 370,336 $ 370,336
514,466 514,466


8,100 8,100
23,240 23,240


916,142 916,142


354,027 354,027
446,878 446,878


87,086 87,086


887,991 887,991


28,151 28,151


11,286 11,286
(6,997) (6,997)


4,289 4,289


32,440 32,440


Capital contributions
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds


Changcs in nct assets


Total nct asscts, bcginning ofycar


Total net asscts, cnd of year


32,440


2,269,870


t. 2,302.310


32,440


2,269,870


X 2,302,310


The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Statement of Cash Flows


Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009


Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds


Water and
Sewer Fund Totals


CASH FLOWS FROM OI'ERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received 11'om eustomers $ 916,269 $ 916,269
Cash paid for operating expenditures 826,966 826,966


Net eash provided by (used in) operating aetivities 89,303 89,303


CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES


Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds


Net eash provided by (used in)
non-capital finaneing aetivities 89,303 89,303


CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL
RELATIW FINANCING ACTIVITIES


Principal paid on long-term debt (45,336) (45,336)
Proceeds from issuanee oflong-term debt
Interest paid (6,997) (6,997)


Net cash provided by (used in) eapital and
related financing activities (52,333) (52,333)


CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest on investments 11,286 11,286
Fixed asset additions (70,333) (70,333)


Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (59,047) (59,047)


Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (22,077) (22,077)


Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 793,762 793,762


Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ }71 ,-Q8~ $ .. 711.685


The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)


Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009


Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds


Water and
Sewer Fund Total


Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operation activities


Operating income $ 28,151 $ 28,151


Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:


Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits


Net cash provided by operating activities


87,086 87,086
127 127


(25,276) (25,276)
(786) (786)


$ 89,303 $ 89)03


The notes to the flnancial statements arc an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements


For the Year Ended June 30, 2009


NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES


The accounting policies of the Town of Wingate conform to accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America as applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the
more significant accounting policies:


Reporting Entity


The Town of Wingate is a municipal corporation that is governed by an elected mayor and a five­
member council. As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, these financial statcments present the Town of Wingate only. There were no entities which
met the requirements of a reportable component unit.


Basis of Presentation


Government-wide Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display
information about the primary government. These statements include the financial activities of the
overall govcrnment. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal
activities. 'I'hese statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the
Town. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and
other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees
charged to external parties.


The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for
the difTerent business-type activities of the Town and for each function of the Town's governmental
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and,
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indireet expense allocations that have been
made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees
and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as
general revenues.


Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the Town's
funds. Separate statements for each fund category - governmental and proprietary - are presented. The
emphasis of li.md financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed
in a separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as
non-major funds. The Town had no non-major funds during the year ended June 30, 2009.


Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies and
investment earnings, result from non-exchange transaetions or ancillary activities.
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
FOI' the Year Ended June 30, 2009


NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)


The Town reports the following major governmental funds:


General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. It is used to account for
all financial resources except those that are required to be accounted for in another fund. The primary
revenue sources are ad valorem taxes, State grants, and various other taxes and licenses. The primary
expenditures arc for public safety, street maintenance and construction, sanitation services, and general
governmental services.


The Town reports the following mg,jor enterprise fund:


Water and Sewer Fund - This fund is used to account for the Town's water and sewer operations.


Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting


In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the Town are maintained during the
year using the modified accrual basis of accounting.


Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide and proprietary
fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are
incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which
the Town gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange,
include property taxes, grants, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes arc levied. Revenue from grants and donations IS


recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.


GovernmenlCll Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds arc reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method,
revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the related
fi.md liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and
judgments, and compensated absences, which arc recognized as expenditures to the extent they have
matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing
sources.


'T'he Town considers all revenues available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end, except
for property taxes. Ad valorem taxes receivable are not accrued as revenue because the amount is not
susceptible to accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable are materially past due and are not considered to
be an available resource to finance the operations of the current year. Also, as of January I, 1993,
State law altered the procedures for the assessment and collection of property taxes on registered motor
vehicles in North Carolina.
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009


NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)


Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (continued)


EiJeetive with this change in the law, Union County is responsible for billing and collecting the
property taxes on registered motor vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts in
the County, including the Town of Wingate. For motor vehicles registered under the staggered system,
property taxes arc due the first day of the fourth month after the vehicles are registered. The billed
taxes are applicable to the flscal year in which they become due. Therefore, the Town's vehicle taxes
for vehicles registered in Union County from March 2008 through February 2009 apply to the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2009. Uncollected taxes that were billed during this period arc shown as a
receivable in these financial statements and are offset by deferred revenues. For vehicles registered
under the annual system, taxes are due on May 1 of each year. For those vehicles registered and billed
under the annual system, uncollected taxes are reported as a receivable on the financial statements and
are offset by deferred revenues because the due date and the date upon which interest begins to accrue
passed prior to June 30. The taxes for vehicles registered annually that have already been collected as
of year-end arc also reflected as deferred revenues at June 30, 2009 because they are intended to
flnance the Town's operations during the 2010 flscal year.


Sales taxes collected and held by the State at year-end on behalf of the Town are recognized as
revenue. Intergovernmental revenues and sales and services are not susceptible to accrual because
generally they are not measurable until received in cash. Grant revenues that are unearned at year-end
are recorded as unearned revenues. Under the terms of grant agreements, the Town funds certain
programs by a combination of specific cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and
general revenues. Thus, when program expenses arc incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted
net assets available to finance the program. It is the Town's policy to flrst apply cost-reimbursement
grant resources to such programs, followed by categorical block grants, and then by general revenues.


As permitted by generally accepted accounting principles, the Town has elected to apply only
applicable FASB Statements and Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989 that do not
contradict GASB pronouncements in its accounting and reporting practices for its proprietary
operations.


Budgetary Data


The Town's budgets arc adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statutes. An annual budget
is adopted for the General Fund and the Enterprise Fund. All annual appropriations lapse at the flscal­
year end. All budgets are prepared using the modifled accrual basis of accounting.


Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the departmental level for all annually budgeted
funds. The Town Administrator is authorized by the budget ordinance to transfer appropriations
between ii-mctional areas within a fund up to $3,000; however, any revisions that alter the total of any
ii-ll1d or that change functional appropriations by more than $3,000, must be approved by the governing
board.
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009


NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)


Budgetary Data (continued)


During the year, several amendments to the original budget were necessary, the effects of which were
not material. The budget ordinance must be adopted by July 1 of the fiscal year or the governing board
must adopt an intcrim budget that covers that time until the annual ordinance can be adopted.


A budget calendar is included in the North Carolina General Statutes that prescribes the last day on
which certain steps of that budget procedure are to be performed. The following schedule lists the tasks
to be performed and the date by which each is required to be completed.


April 30


June 1


July 1


Each department head will transmit to the budget officer, the budget requests
and the revenue estimates for their department for the budget year.
The budget and the budget message shall be submitted to the governing board.
The public hearing on the budget shall be scheduled at this time.
The budget ordinance shall be adopted by the governing board.


Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equitv


All deposits of the Town are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured as required
by G.S. 159-31. The Town may designate, as an official depository, any bank or savings and loan
association whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the Town may establish time
deposit accounts such as NOW and SuperNOW accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of
deposit.


State law [G.S. 159-30(e)] authorizes the Town to invest in obligations of the United States or
obligations fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of the
State of North Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public authority;
obligations of certain non-guaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality issues of commercial paper
and bankers' acceptances and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT).


In accordance with State law, the Town has invested in securities which are callable and which provide
for periodic interest rate increase in specific increments until maturity. These investments are reported
at hlir value as determined by quoted market prices.
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009


NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (eontinued)


Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity (continued)


Cash and Cash Equivalents


The 'fown pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and to maximize
investment income, Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand deposits and are
considered cash and cash equivalents


Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable


In accordance with O,S, 105-347 and O,S, I59-I3(a), the Town levies ad valorem taxes on property
other than motor vehicles on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are due on September I
(lien date); however, interest does not accrue until the following January. These taxes are based on the
assessed values as ofJanuary 1,2008.


Capital Assets


Capital assets is defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $500
and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Purchased or constructed capital assets are
reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation.


Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:


Plant assets
Furniture and office equipment
Medium and heavy equipment and motor vehicles


50 years
5-7 years
5-7 years


The 'fown capitalizes net interest costs and interest earned as part of the cost of constructing various
water and sewer projects when material.


Long-Term Obligations


In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt is reported as a liability in the applicable governmental activities, business­
type activities, or proprietary fund type statement and net assets and other long-term obligations are
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary
fund type statement of net assets.
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009


NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)


Net Assets/Fund Balanees


Net assets in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as invested in
capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net assets represent constraints
on resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments or imposed by law through state statute. As of June 30, 2009, the
Town had restricted net assets totaling $350,533.


In the governmental fund financial statements, reservations of fund balanee represent amounts that
cannot be appropriated or are legally segregated for a speeific purpose. Designations of fund balance
represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.


G.S. 159- I3(b)(16) restriets appropriation of fund balance for the subsequent year's budget to an
amount not to exceed the sum of cash and investments minus the sum of liabilities, encumbrances, and
deferred revenues arising hom cash receipts as those amounts stand at the close of the fiscal year
preceding the budget year.


The governmental fund types classify fund balanccs as follows:


Reserved: Rcserved by State statute - that portion of fund balance which is not available
for appropriation under State law [O.S. I59-8(a)]. This amount is usually
comprised of accounts receivable and interfund receivables, whieh have not
been offset by deferred revenues.


Reserved for streets - Powell Bill - that portion of fund balance that is available
for appropriation but legally segregated for street construction and maintenanee
expenditures. This amount represents the balance of the total unexpended
Powell Bill funds.


Unreserved: Designated for subsequent year's expenditures - that portion of the total fund
balance available for appropriation that has been designated for the adopted
2009 - 20 I0 budget ordinance.


Undesignated - that portion of total fund balance available for appropriation that
is uncommitted at year-end.


Compensated Absences


The vacation policy of the Town providcs for the accumulation of up to thirty (30) days earned
vacation leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. The liability of the governmental fund
has been recorded in the fund itself. For the Town's proprietary fund, an expense and a liability for
compensated absences and the salary-related payments are recorded within the fund as leave is earned.
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009


NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Compensated Absences (continued)
The Town's sick leave policy provides for an unlimited accumulation of earned sick leave. Sick leave
does not vest, but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may be used in the
determination of length of service for retirement benefit purposes. Since the Town has no obligation
for the accumulated sick leave until it is actually taken, no accrual for sick leave has been made.


NOTE B - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the actual operating revenues in the Town's General Fund
exceeded those budgeted primarily due to actual collections of ad valorem taxes greater than the
amount budgeted. At first glance, expenditures made by the Town during the year from the General
Fund for the Public Safety department appear to exceed the amount budgeted because the approved
budget for current year capital outlay and debt service was reflected net of anticipated proceeds from
long term debt. However, no material amounts were over expended as the net variance for these three
line items is $774.


For the same period, the budgeted revenues in the Town's Water and Sewer Fund exceeded those
actually generated primarily because a smaller volume of water and sewer services were consumed
than anticipated.


NOTE C - ASSETS
Deposits
All the deposits of the Town are either insured or collateralized by using the Pooling Method. Under
the Pooling Method, which is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities
held by the State Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is
acting in a fiduciary capacity for the Town, these deposits are considered to be held by the Town's
agent in its name. The amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for
non-interest bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest-bearing deposits. Depositories
using the Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering
uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm this information with the Town or the
escrow agent. Because of the inability to measure the exact amounts of collateral pledged for the
Town the Pooling Method, the potential exists for under-collaterization, and this risk may increase in
periods of high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict standards of
financial stability for each depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method.
The Town has no formal policy regarding custodial credit risk for deposits, but relies upon the State
Treasurer to enforce standards of minimum capitalization for all pooling method financial institutions
and to monitor them for compliance.


At June 30, 2009, the Town's deposits had a carrying amount of$1,718,867 and a bank balance of
$1,739,260. Of the bank balance, $1,574,841 was covered by federal deposit insurance and $164,419
was covered by collateral held under the Pooling Method.
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements (Continned)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009


NOTI~ C - ASSETS (continued)


Capital Assets


Capital asset activity for the Primary Government for the year ended June 30, 2009 was as follows:


$ 126,622 $ $ $ 126,622
126,622 126,622


1,545,755 48,573 1,594,328
117,661 3,640 121,301
173,215 173,215
693,522 58,788 752,310


82,876 82,876
2,613,029 I I 1.00 I 2,724,030


230,628 59,748 290,376
106,594 6,275 112,870
117,513 12,481 129,994
603,151 38,657 641,808


24,041 5,235 29,275
1.081.927 122,397 1,204,324


--L5J.lJ02 1.519,706
tJ,6,51,161 1L6,16,,:)28


Bcginning
Balances


Governmel1fal activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:


Land, non-depreciable improvements and
construction in progress


Total capital assets not being deprcciated
Capital assets being depreciated:


Building and improvcmcnts
Office furniture and equipment
Other equipment
Vehicles
Infrastructure


Total capital assets being depreciated
Less aecumulatcd depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Office furniture and cquipmcnt
Other equipment
Vehicles
In frastructure


Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net


Governmental activity capital assets, net


Increases Decreases
Ending


Balances


$ 70,135
70,13~


2,434,209
789,808


--.l,224,0 17


Business-type activities:
Watcr and Scwcr Fund
Capital assets not bcing depreciated:


Land, non-dcpreciablc improvements and
construction in progress


Total capital asscts not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated:


Plant and distribution systems
Maintenance equipment


Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:


Plant and distribution systems 1,083,825
Maintcnancc cquipmcnt 524,941


Total accumulated depreciation 1.608,766
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 1,615,251


Business type activity capital assets, net 1,))i8,,~,1s'_6,
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$ 70,333
70,333


53,120
33,966
87,086


$ $ 140,468
140,468


2,434,209
789,808


3,224,0 I7


1,136,945
558,907


1,695,852
1.528, 16~


lLMs',6,:))







TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009


NOTE C - ASSETS (continued)


Capital Assets (continued)


Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:


General government
Public Safety
'rransportation
Culture and recreation
Environmental protection


'rotal depreciation expense


NOTE D - LIABILITIES


Pension Plan Obligations


Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System


$ 10,213
49,785
19,134
42,415


850
$122,391


Plan Description. The Town of Wingate contributes to the statewide Local Governmental Employees'
Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by the State of North Carolina. LGERS provides retirement and disability benefits to
plan members and beneficiaries. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and
amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Local Governmental
Employees' Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for
the State of North Carolina. The State's CAFR includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Oiliee of the
State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919)
981-5454.


Funding Policy. Plan members are required to contribute six percent of their annual covered salary.
'rhe Town is required to contribute at an aetuarially determined rate. For the Town, the current rate for
employees not cngaged in law cnforcement and for law enforcement officers is 4.87% and 4.86%,
rcspectively, of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of members and of the Town
of Wingate is established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. The Town's
contributions to LGERS for the year ended June 30, 2009 was $30,711. The contributions made by the
'rown equaled the required contributions for each year.
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009


NOTE D - LIABILITIES (continued)


Pension Plan Obligations (continued)


Law Enforcement Officers Special Separation Allowance


The 'T'own of Wingate administers a public employee retirement system (the "Separation Allowance"),
a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the Town's
qualified sworn law enforcement officers, The Separation Allowance is equal to ,85 percent of the
annual equivalent of the base rate of compensation most recently applicable to the officer for each year
of creditable service, The retirement benefits arc not subject to any increases in salary or retirement
allowances that may be authorized by the General Assembly, Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns
the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. All
full time law enforcement officers of the Town are covered by the Separation Allowance.


The Town of Wingate has not conducted an actuarial study to determine the liability for such
allowance. However, no law enforcement officer is eligible for current benefits, and any pension
benefit obligation is not material.


Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers


Plan Description. The Town contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (Plan), a
defined contribution pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of
Trustees. The Plan provides retirement benefits to law enforcement officers employed by the Town.
Article 5 of G.S. Chapter 135 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the
North Carolina General Assembly.


Funding Policy. Article 12E of G.S. Chapter 143 requires the Town to contribute each month an
amount equal to five percent of each officer's salary, and all amounts contributed are vested
immediately. Also, the law enforcement officers may make voluntary contributions to the plan.
Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2009 were $16,904 which consisted of $12,719 from the
Town and $4,185 Ji'om the law enforcement officers. Employees other than law enforcement officers
are allowed to make voluntary contributions. Contributions made by non-law enforcement employees
totaled $0 for the year ended June 30, 2009.


Post-Employment Benefits


The Town provides a health-care stipend for retired employees with at least IS years of creditable
service. Currently, two retirees are receiving benefits, and the cost of the benefits arc expensed by the
town as paid.
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
Fol' the YeaI' Ended June 30,2009


NOTE E - DEFERRED REVENUES


The balance in deferred revenues at year-end is composed of the following:


Ad Valorem taxes receivable


NOTE F - COMMITMENTS


The Town entered into an agreement with a contractor for the construction of infrastructure for The
Trellis Subdivision, Phase II. The contractor failed to complete the construction and the Town
demanded damages from the contractors bonding company. The Town received $310,900 from the
Performance Bond and subsequently contracted with another contractor to complete the infrastructure
for The Trellis Subdivision, Phase II. The monies received by the Town were not recorded as income
since the Town only acted as an agent for the performance bond proceeds for the completion of The
Trellis Subdivision, Phase II project. The project was completed during the year, and the remaining
bond funds of $50,000 arc reflected as a current liability to be repaid to the bonding company, in the
accompanying financial statements.


NOTE G - RISK MANAGEMENT


The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Town participates in
three self-funded risk-fInancing pools administered by the North Carolina League of Municipalities.
Through these pools, the Town has workers' compensation coverage up to statutory limits. The pool is
reinsured through commercial companies for $300,000 up to statutory limits for workers'
compensation. The Town carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss including property,
general and auto liability and employee health coverage. Settled claims have not exceeded coverage in
any of the past three years.


The Town docs not carry flood insurance because no signifIcant property of the Town is in an area that
has been mapped as a flood zone.


In accordance with O.S. 159-29, the Town's employees that have access to $100 or more of Town
funds at any given time are performance bonded through a commercial surety bond. The finance
offIcer is individually bonded for $50,000 and the remaining employees with access to cash are bonded
under a blanket bond of$10,000.
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
FOI' the Year Ended June 30, 2009


NOTE H - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS


Capital Leases


The Town has entered into agreements to lease certain equipment. The lease agreements qualify as
capital leases for accounting purposes, and therefore, have been recorded at the present value of the
futurc minimum lease payments as of the date of their inception.


Capital Leases to which the Town is subject at June 30, 2009 are as follows:


On July 5, 2008, the Town executed a lease for a 2008 Dodge Charger that requires annual
lease payments of $8,595 for three years. Title to the equipment passes to the Town at the end
of the lease term.


On July 12, 2008, the Town executed a lease for a 2008 Ford Explorer that requires annual
lease payments of $9,049 for three years. Title to the vehicle passes to the Town at the end of
the lease term.


'I'he following is an analysis of the assets recorded under capital leases in the Town's General Fund at
June 30, 2009:


Class of Property
Equipment
Vehicles


2009
$
$ 55,043


Future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of
June 30, 2009 were as follows:


Year Ending
June 30
2010
20 II
2012
2013
2014


Total minimum lease payments
Less: amount representing interest
Present value of minimum lease payments
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Payments
$ 17,644


17,644


35,288
(4,149)


$ 31.132







TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009


NOTE I - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)


Long Tcrm Debt


On April 18, 2006, the Town obtained financing from a bank for the construction of a new community
ccnter. Principal payments of $778 and interest payments at 4.14% are to be made monthly with the
last payment due in April 2021.


Balances at June 30, 2009 are as follows:


Note payable, bank
Less portion due within one year


Long-term debt


Installment Purchase (continued)


$ 110,444
(9,333)


$. )Q1.1Jl


The following summarizes the annual required payments for the community center:


Fiscal Year
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014


Thereafter


Annual Requirements
Principal Interest
$ 9,333 $ 4,396


9,333 4,009
9,333 3,623
9,333 3,236
9,333 2,850


63,778 9,130


Total
$ 13,729


13,342
12,956
12,569
12,183
72,910


Total Debt $110,444 $ 27,244


The Town obtained financing from a bank to improve and construct water and sewer lines. Monthly
payments of $4,361 inelude interest at 3.71 percent. The note matures in October 2012.


Balance at June 30, 2009 is as follows:


Notes payable, bank
Less portion due within one year


Long-term debt
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009


NOTE I - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)


The following summarizes the annual requirements to amortize the installment purchase for the sewer
extension:


Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2010 $ 47,048 5,285 $ 52,333
2011 48,824 3,509 52,333
2012 50,664 1,669 52,333
2013 17,317 133 17,450
2014


Total Debt $t63,853 $J0526 $L74,'\42


Changes in Long-term Debt
Balance


June 30, 2008
Balance


Additions Retirements June 30, 2009


Governmental activities:


Capital leases $ 6,975 $ 48,783 $ 24,619 $ 31,139
Installment purchases 138,277 27,833 110,444


Governmental activity
Long-term debt $ __ 145,252 $ 48,183 $ 52A52 $ 14WJ.


Business-type activities:
Installment purchases $ 209,189 $ $ 45,336 $ 163,853


Business-type activity
Long-term debt ~~_ 20_2,182 ,L ___ $ 45.336 L..lQ3,853


NOTE I - MANAGEMENT ESTIMATES


The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affeet the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting
period. Actual results eould differ from these estimates.
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual


General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009


Revenues
Ad valorem taxes:


Taxes
Penalties and interest


'rotal ad valorem taxes
Other taxes and licenses:


Privilege licenses
Total other taxes and licenses


Unrestricted intergovernmental:
Local option sales tax
Utility franchise tax
Beer and wine taxes
Cable TV hanchise fee
Tax refunds


Total unrestricted intergovernmental
Restricted intergovernmental:


Powell Bill allocation
Federal and state grants
Drug tax
Solid waste disposal tax


Total restricted intergovernmental
Permits and fees:


Court fees
Zoning fees


'rota I permit & fees
Sales and service:


Garbage collection
Security service
Park concessions and rents


Total sales and service
Othcr general revenues:


Cemetery
Parking tickct
Miscellaneous


Total other general revenues
Investment earnings


Total revenues


2009
Variance
Positive


Bndget Actnal (Negative)


$ 486,709 $ 506,310 $ 19,601
2,500 7,291 4,791


489,209 513,601 24,392


1,202 2,328 1, 126
1,202 2,328 1, 126


158,050 125,346 (32,704)
104,500 127,027 22,527


17,500 18,166 666
2,800 3,224 424


14,600 5,716 (8,884)
297,450 279,479 (17,971)


109,400 109,434 34
5,300 19,505 14,205


944 944
646 646


114,700 130,529 15,829


1,500 1,801 301
1,000 1,495 495
2,500 3,296 796


169,000 173,185 4,185
65,000 63,917 (1,083)
10,300 13,312 3,012


_244,300 250,414 6,114


1,200 5,349 (4,149)
3,015 2,320 (695)


16,435 10,559 (5,876)
20,650 18,228 (10,720)


7,816 9,176 1,360
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Statement of Revennes, Expenditures, and Changes in Fnnd Balances - Budget and Aetna' (Continned)


General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009


Expenditures
General government


Salaries and employee benefits
Operating expenditures
Professional services


'rota I general government


Adm in istration:
Salaries and employee benefits
Operating expenditures
Capital outlay
Total administration


Public buildings:
Operating expenditures
Capital outlay


Total public buildings
Total general government


Public safety
Police:


Salaries and employee benefits
Operating expenditures
Capital outlay


Total police


Fire:
Operating expenditures
Capital outlay


Total fire
Total public safety


Transportation:
Salaries and employee benefits
Operating expenditures
Capital outlay


Total transportation


2009
Variance
Positive


Budget Actual (Negative)


$ 45,675 $ 41,397 $ 4,278
20,600 14,571 6,029


__12,650 19,144 506
85,925 75,112 10,813


98,265 88,109 10,156
44,167 37,364 6,803


142,432 125,473 16,959


16,350 16,610 (260)


16,350 16,610 (260)
244,707 217,195 27,512


356,310 364,280 (7,970)
70,765 64,419 6,346
39,000 62,429 (23,429)


466,075 491,128 (25,053)


9,400 5,097 4,303


9,400 5,097 4,303
475,475 496.225 (20,750)


35,580 40,745 (5,165)
118,750 98,671 20,079
38,445 28,085 10,360


$ 192,775 $167,501 $ 25,274
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Statcmcnt of Rcvcnucs, Expcnditurcs, and Changcs in Fund Balanccs - Budgct and Actual (Continued)


General Fund
For the Year Endcd Junc 30, 2009


Environmental protection:
Sanitation:


Operating expenditures
Total cnvironmcntal protection


Culture and recreation:
Parks and recreation:


Salaries and employee bencfits
Operating expenditures
Capital outlay
Total culture and recreation


Other
Community enrichment
Cemctery


Totalothcr


Debt scrvice:
Principal retirement
Interest and other charges


Total dcbt scrviec


Total cxpcnditurcs


Rcvcnues ovcr (undcr) cxpcnditurcs


2009
Varianec
Positivc


Budgct Actual (Ncgative)


$ 163,900 $ 158,975 $ 4,925
163,900 158,975 4,925


32,475 35,346 (2,871 )
33,210 37,042 (3,832)
30,390 20,488 9,902
96,075 92,876 3,199


5,750 4,924 826
5,500 4,932 568


11,250 9,856 1,394


28,650 52,452 (23,801)
5,000 5,779 (779)


33,650 58,231 (24,580)


1,217,832 I ,200,859 16,148


(40,005) 6,192 46,196


Other financing sources (uscs):
Transfers from other funds:


Water and Scwer Fund
Donations
Proceeds of long-term debt
Sale of capital assets
Other
Appropriated fund balance


Net other financing (uses)


Revellues and other financing sources
ovcr (uuder) expcnditures and othcr
financiug (uscs)


Fund balances:
Beginning of year, July I


End of ycar, June 30


(3,000)


----±1,005
$ 40,005
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(3,000)
48,783


905,311


£"2.52,;;&2


48,783


(43,005)
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non - GAAP)


Water and Sewer Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009


2009
Variance


Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)


Revenues
Operating revenues:


Water sales $ 399,175 $ 370,336 $ (28,839)
Sewer charges 525,000 514,466 (l0,534)
Water and sewer taps 41,800 8,100 (33,700)
Other operating revenues 22,000 23,240 1,240


Total operating revenues 987,975 916,142 (7\,833)


Non-operating revenues:
Interest on investments 15,000 11,286 (3,714)
Sale of capital assets
Tax refunds


Total non-operating revenues 15,000 I \,286 (3,714)


Total revenues \'002,975 927,428 (75,547)


Expenditures
Water operations:


Salaries and employee benefits 131,250 124,148 7,102
Other operating expenditures 297,405 229,879 67,526


Total water operations 428,655 354,027 74,628


Sewer operations:
Salaries and employee benefits 192,475 185,088 7,387
Other operating expenditures 323,185 261,790 61,395


Total sewer operations 515,660 446,878 68,782


Debt service:
Interest fees 10,000 6,997 3,003
Principal retirement 42,500 45,336 (2,836)


Total debt service 52,500 52,333 167


Capital outlay:
Equipment and improvements 119,160 70,333 48,827


Total capital outlay 119,160 70.333 48.827


Total expenditures $ 1,115,975 $ 923,571 $ 192,405
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TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non - GAAP) (Continued)


Water and Sewer Fund
Fot' the Year Ended June 30, 2009


Budget


2009


Actual


Variance
Positive


(Negative)


Other flnancing sources (uses)
Transfer to other fLllld:


General Fund (payment in lieu of taxes)
Appropriated fund balance
Unappropriated expenses
Loan proceeds


Total other flnancing sources (uses)


Revenues and other sources over
expenditures and other uses


Reconciliation from budgetary basis
(modified accrual) to full accrual:


Reconciling items:
Principal retirement
Capital outlay
Depreciation


Total reconciling items


Nct income (GAAP)


$ $ $
113,000 (113,000)


113,000 (113,000)


$. --_.. _.... . $. 3,.857 $. 3,857


$ 45,336
70,333


(87,086)
28,583


$. ._. ..- 32.440
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OTHER SCHEDULES







Fiscal Year


2008-2009
2007-2008
2006-2007
2005-2006
2004-2005
2003-2004
2002-2003
2001-2002
2000-2001
1999-2000
1998-1999


TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable


General Fund
June 30, 2009


Uncollected Uncollected
Balance Interest & Collections & Balance


June 30, 2008 Additions Credits June 30, 2009


$ $ 511,839 $ 477,729 $ 34,110
34,918 4,611 22,549 16,980
19,293 3,455 8,659 14,089
12,903 1,666 4,828 9,742
8,538 1,233 3,829 5,942
5,365 527 3,656 2,236
5,812 241 3,378 2,675
2,035 ISO 130 2,055
2,005 115 52 2,069
1,530 202 168 1,565
1,194 1,194


t~ 93,593 $ ,,524,040 $ 526.,l?Q :Ii., . 91A62


Reconcilement with revenues:


Ad valorem taxes - General Fund
Less penalties with interest
Release of taxes receivable
Total collections and credits
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$ 513,601
(7,291)
19,860


L 526,17Q







TOWN OF WINGATE, NORTH CAROLINA
Analysis of Current Tax Levy


Town Wide Levy
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009


Property
Valuation


Total
Levy


Property
Excluding
Registered


Motor
Vehicles


Registered
Motor


Vehicles


Uncollected Taxes as of June 30, 2009
Current year's taxes collected
Current levy collection percentage


Original Levy
Property taxed at


current year rate
Total


Discoveries
Current year taxes
Penalties


Total


Abatements


Net Levy


$130,648.491


$


$


$


.39 509.458 $ 456,222 $ 53,237


$ $ $
$ 2,381 $ 2,071 $ 310
$ $ $


$ $


$ 511,839 $ 458,293 $ 53,546


$ 34,1 10 $ 19,976 $ 14,135
$ 477,729 $ 438,317 $ 39.412


93.34 95.64 73.60


-48-







COMPLIANCE SECTION







Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in accordance with


Government Auditing Standards


To the Honorable Mayor and Board of Commissioners
Town of Wingate
Wingate, North Carolina


We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type
activities, and each major fund of the Town of Wingate, North Carolina as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2009, which collectively comprises the Town of Wingate's basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated October 9, 2009. We have conducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States.


Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit, we consider the Town of Wingate's internal control over
financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal
control over financial reporting.


A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of
control deficiencies, that adversely affects the Town of Wingate's ability to initiate, authorize, record,
process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
such that there is more than a remote likelihOOd that a misstatement of the Town's financial statements
that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by internal controls.


A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results
in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be
prevented or detected by the Town of Wingate internal control.


Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be signiflcant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deflciencies in
internal control over flnancial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.







Compliance
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Wingate's financial statements.
are fi'ee of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of non-compliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.


We noted certain matters that we reported to the management of the Town of Wingate in a separate
letter dated October 9, 2009.


This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, others
within the organization, members of the Board of Commissioners, and federal and State awarding
agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.


October 9, 2009
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AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 


 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this       day of      , 20     , by and between the 
Town of Wingate, North Carolina hereinafter referred to as CLIENT, and Stearns & Wheler, PLLC 
(A GHD Affiliated Company), located at 3128 Highwoods Boulevard, Suite 140, Raleigh, NC, 
27604, hereafter referred to as "CONSULTANT". 
 
IN CONSIDERATION of the covenants hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto mutually agree as 
follows:  
 
 


ARTICLE 1 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 


 
 
1.1 Scope of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees to provide and perform certain professional 
services for CLIENT in connection with the PROJECT as set forth in Exhibit “A” – Scope of 
Services, dated 22 December, 2009 attached hereto and incorporated by this reference. 
 
1.2 Schedule of Services.  Upon receipt of written Notice to Proceed from the CLIENT, 
CONSULTANT shall perform Services in the Scope of Services with diligence.   
 
1.3 Representations and Warranties. 
a. CONSULTANT is financially solvent, able to pay its debts as they mature, and possessed of 
sufficient working capital to complete the work in accordance with this Agreement. 
b. CONSULTANT is authorized to do business in the State of North Carolina, and is properly 
licensed by all necessary governmental and public and quasi-public authorities having jurisdiction 
over it to perform the work under the terms of this Agreement. 
c. CONSULTANT’s execution of this Agreement and its performance of its obligations hereunder 
does not now and will not in the future violate any agreement between the CONSULTANT and 
any third party, or any obligation of CONSULTANT to any third party, including, without limitation, 
any non-compete agreement or obligation. 
d. CONSULTANT has the skill necessary to perform its work pursuant to this Agreement, and 
services provided by CONSULTANT shall be performed in a professional manner in accordance 
with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 
e. CONSULTANT warrants that no claims exist on its insurance coverage that may compromise 
its insurability for the minimum coverages set forth in Article 3. 
 
 
1.4 Independent Contractor.  The parties intend that an independent contractor relationship 
be created by this Agreement. CONSULTANT agrees that its officers, employees, and/or agents 
are not and shall not hold themselves out to be officers, employees or agents of CLIENT. 
CONSULTANT shall be responsible for providing any salary or other benefits to its employees; 
will make all appropriate tax, social security, Medicare and other withholding deductions and 
payments; and will make all appropriate unemployment tax, withholding tax, and workers’ 
compensation payments. CONSULTANT shall be independently and separately responsible for 
any liability to third parties to the extent resulting from the negligent or intentional acts or 
omissions of CONSULTANT arising from or occurring in the course of the performance of 
CONSULTANT’s work under this Agreement.  No act or direction of CLIENT shall be deemed to 
be the exercise of supervision or control by CLIENT over CONSULTANT’s performance 
hereunder, contrary to such independent contractor relationship. 
 
 



karen.wingo

Text Box

Attachment C
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ARTICLE 2 
COMPENSATION 


 
 
2.1 Fee.  CLIENT agrees to compensate CONSULTANT for a lump sum fee in the amount of 
thirty-nine thousand dollars ($ 39,000), in accordance with the Scope of Services dated 22 
December, 2009 attached as Exhibit “A”.   
 
2.2 Payment Address. 
All payments due CONSULTANT shall be paid to: 
 
Stearns & Wheler, PLLC 
3128 Highwoods Boulevard, Suite 140 
Raleigh, NC 27604 
 
2.3 Payment.  CLIENT agrees to pay CONSULTANT for the complete and timely completion 
of its work on a lump sum basis in accordance with the submitted invoice for services.   
 
CLIENT agrees that all billings from CONSULTANT to CLIENT are correct and binding unless 
CLIENT, within ten (10) days from the date of receipt of such billing, notifies CONSULTANT in 
writing of alleged inaccuracies, discrepancies, or errors in billing.  CLIENT agrees to pay a 
monthly late payment charge, which will be the lesser of one and one-half percent (1-1/2 %) per 
month or a monthly charge not to exceed the maximum legal rate, which will be applied to any 
unpaid balance commencing thirty (30) days after the date of billing. 
 
Invoicing by CONSULTANT shall be in accordance with the Scope of Services (Exhibit “A” – 
Scope of Services) and in a format consistent with CLIENT’s invoicing procedures, and shall 
comply with applicable process and format requirements in the Contract Documents.  
CONSULTANT’s invoices shall be submitted to: 
  
Town of Wingate 
P.O. Box 367 
Wingate, NC 28174 
  
Attn:  Accounts Payable 
 
 
 
2.4 Partial Services.  In the event any portion of the work prepared or partially prepared by 
CONSULTANT is suspended, abandoned, or terminated, CLIENT shall pay CONSULTANT for 
the work performed on such portion on a prorated basis, not to exceed any maximum contract 
amount specified herein. 
 
2.5 Additional Services.  CLIENT may request CONSULTANT to perform additional 
services not covered by the specific Scope of Services set forth in this Agreement, and 
CONSULTANT shall perform such services and will be paid for such additional services when 
they are mutually agreed to and made part of this Agreement by written amendment. 
 
 
 


ARTICLE 3 
INDEMNIFICATION, LIMITATION OF LIABILITY AND INSURANCE 
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3.1 Indemnification.  CONSULTANT agrees to indemnify and hold harmless CLIENT its 
officers and employees from and against liability, damages, costs, losses, claims and expenses, 
including reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of the negligent acts, errors, or omissions of 
CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement.  In the event CLIENT obtains 
indemnification for itself from another party performing work on the Project, CLIENT shall require 
that party to indemnify CONSULTANT to the same extent that party indemnifies CLIENT. 
 
3.2 Limitation of Liability.  CLIENT and CONSULTANT have discussed their risks, rewards 
and benefits of the Project and the CONSULTANT fee for services.  The risks have been 
allocated such that CLIENT agrees that to the fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT's 
total liability to CLIENT under this Agreement shall not exceed the amount of $2,000,000. 
Notwithstanding the above, the total liability for all GHD-Affiliated companies to the Town of 
Wingate under this Agreement as well as that for the Comprehensive Plan and Downtown Plan 
shall not exceed $2 million. 
 
3.3 Workers Compensation.  CONSULTANT maintains Workers' Compensation and 
Employer's Liability Insurance of a form and in an amount as required by state law. 
 
3.4 Notice of Cancellation.  CONSULTANT agrees to provide thirty (30) days written Notice 
to CLIENT prior to cancellation of any policy. 
 
3.5 Client Provided Documents.  CLIENT agrees to indemnify and hold harmless 
CONSULTANT, its officers and employees, from and against any and all liability, damages, costs, 
losses, claims and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, due to incorrect data or 
information provided by the CLIENT including, but not limited to utility location data, as-built 
drawings, topographic survey, geotechnical reports, etc. 
 
 


ARTICLE 4 
TERMINATION 


 
 
4.1 Termination of Contract.  This Agreement may be terminated by either party at any time 
with or without cause upon thirty (30) days prior written Notice.  In the event of termination by 
CLIENT, CONSULTANT shall be paid at the hourly rates then in effect within thirty (30) days of 
submittal of invoice for all services performed to the date of termination and for all expenses 
directly attributable to the termination, including, but not limited to, any cancellation charges by 
subconsultants and/or contractors. 


 
 


ARTICLE 5 
OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 


 
 
5.1 Ownership of Documents.  All plans, specifications, reports and other design 
documents prepared by CONSULTANT pursuant to this Agreement are instruments of service 
which shall be deemed the property of the CLIENT.   
 
In the event CLIENT permits the reuse or other use of the plans, specifications, computer models, 
reports or other design documents, CLIENT shall require the party using them to indemnify and 
hold harmless CLIENT and CONSULTANT regarding such reuse or other use, and CLIENT shall 
require the party using them to eliminate any and all references to CONSULTANT from the plans, 
specifications, computer models, reports and other design documents.  
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CLIENT agrees to waive all claims against CONSULTANT resulting in any way from any 
unauthorized changes or reuse of the electronic files for any other project by anyone other than 
CONSULTANT. 
 
CLIENT is aware that differences may exist between the electronic files delivered and the printed 
hard copy documents.  In the event of a conflict between the signed, hard copy documents 
prepared by CONSULTANT and electronic files, the signed hard copy documents shall govern. 
 
 


ARTICLE 6 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 


 
 
6.1 Delay.  CONSULTANT shall not be responsible for delay, nor shall CONSULTANT be 
responsible for damages or be in default or deemed to be in default by reason of strikes, lockouts, 
accidents, or acts of God, or the failure of CLIENT to furnish timely information or to approve or 
disapprove CONSULTANT'S work promptly, or delay or faulty performance by CLIENT, other 
contractors, or governmental agencies, or any other delays beyond CONSULTANT'S control or 
without CONSULTANT's fault. 
 
6.2 Not Used 
 
6.3 Not Used 
 
6.4 Maintenance of Records.  CONSULTANT shall maintain documents, accounts, and 
records, including personnel, property, financial, and other such records as may be deemed 
reasonably necessary by CLIENT, and as may be required by the Contract Documents, to ensure 
proper documentation of CONSULTANT’s work, and proper accounting for all contract funds in 
compliance with this Agreement.  Such records shall sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and 
indirect costs of any nature expended, and services provided in the performance of this 
Agreement 
 
6.5 Not Used 
 
6.6 Permitting and Approvals.  If the scope of services includes CONSULTANT’s 
assistance in applying for governmental permits or approvals, CONSULTANT’s assistance shall 
not constitute a representation, warranty or guarantee that such permits or approvals will be 
acted upon favorably by any governmental agency. 
 
6.7 Not Used  
 
6.8 Bankruptcy.  If CLIENT files a voluntary petition seeking relief under the United States 
Bankruptcy Code or if there is an involuntary bankruptcy petition filed against CLIENT in the 
United States Bankruptcy Court, and that petition is not dismissed within fifteen (15) days of its 
filing, CONSULTANT shall be entitled to continue suspension of the performance of any and all of 
its obligations pursuant to this agreement where the CLIENT is in default and was in default prior 
to the filing of the bankruptcy petition.  If, upon filing a voluntary petition or an individual petition in 
the United States Bankruptcy Court, CLIENT seeks to have CONSULTANT continue to provide 
services pursuant to this agreement, CLIENT agrees to comply with applicable provisions of the 
United States Bankruptcy Code to ensure payment for any continuing or reinstated services. 
 
6.9 Contractual Legal Obligation.  The consultant shall not be required to execute any 
documents subsequent to the signing of this Agreement that in any way might, in the judgment of 
CONSULTANT, increase CONSULTANT’s contractual or legal obligations or risk, or adversely 
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affect the availability or cost of its professional or general liability insurance.  Nor shall 
CONSULTANT be required to sign any documents, requested bay any party, including CLIENT, 
that would result in CONSULTANT’s having to certify, guarantee, warrant or state the existence 
of conditions whose existence CONSULTANT cannot ascertain. The CLIENT also aggress not to 
make resolution of any dispute with CONSULTANT or payment of any money due to 
CONSULTANT, in any way contingent upon CONSULTANT signing any such certification, 
guarantee, warranty or statement. 
 
6.10 Unauthorized Changes.  In the event (1) CLIENT agrees to, authorizes, or permits 
changes in the plans, specifications or documents prepared by CONSULTANT, which changes 
are not consented to in writing by CONSULTANT, or (2) CLIENT agrees to, authorizes or permits 
construction of unauthorized changes in the plans, specifications or documents prepared by 
CONSULTANT, which changes are not consented to in writing by CONSULTANT, or (3) CLIENT 
does not follow recommendations prepared by CONSULTANT pursuant to this agreement, which 
changed recommendations are not consented to in writing by CONSULTANT: CLIENT 
acknowledges that the unauthorized changes and their effects are not the responsibility of 
CONSULTANT and CLIENT agrees to release CONSULTANT from all liability arising from the 
use of such changes, and further agrees, to the extent permitted by law, to defend, indemnify and 
hold harmless CONSULTANT, its officers, directors, employees and subconsultants from and 
against all claims, demands, damages or costs, including attorneys’ feed, arising from 
unauthorized changes. 
 
6.11 Not Used 
 
6.12 Confidentiality.  CONSULTANT agrees and shall require its employees, agents, 
representatives, assignees, approved lower tier Subconsultants, or other persons having an 
interest or duty in this Agreement to hold in strict confidence, and not to use or disclose or permit  
the use or disclosure of, directly or indirectly, to any party, other than CLIENT, any Confidential 
Information obtained from CLIENT generated in the performance of services rendered under this 
Agreement, or of the existence or terms of this Agreement, without CLIENT's prior express 
written consent, unless required to do so by law.  
 
As used in this Agreement, "Confidential Information" shall mean any information pertaining to the 
performance of the work rendered under this Agreement.  Confidential Information includes, but is 
not limited to, assessments, investigations, sampling, monitoring, quality assurance plans, 
laboratory analysis, applications, reports, or any information provided to CONSULTANT regarding 
CLIENT's services, or their property, in the course of CONSULTANT’s performance under this 
Agreement whether oral, handwritten, typewritten, printed, recorded (digital or analog), or graphic 
matter, including computer-generated media, however produced or reproduced, regardless of 
whether such was created by CLIENT or its representatives and regardless of whether such was 
identified or marked as "Confidential."  Confidential Information also shall mean any information 
relating to the secret processes, products, compositions, machinery, apparatus, or trade secrets 
of CLIENT.  Any information not generally available to the public shall be considered "secret" for 
purpose of this Agreement. 
 
6.13 Third Party Rights.  This Agreement is entered into for the sole and express benefit of 
the parties hereto and the CLIENT.  Nothing contained herein shall be construed to create a right 
in any third party other than the CLIENT, and nothing herein shall inure to the benefit of any other 
third party. 
 
6.14 Dispute Resolution.  The parties agree in good faith to attempt to resolve amicably, 
without litigation, any dispute arising out of or relating to this agreement.  In the event that any 
dispute cannot be resolved through direct discussions, the parties agree to endeavor to settle the 
dispute by mediation.  Either party may make a written demand for mediation, which demand 
shall specify the facts of the dispute.  The matter shall be submitted to a mediator who shall hear 
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the matter and provide an informal nonbinding opinion and advice in order to help resolve the 
dispute.  The mediator’s fee shall be shared equally by the parties.  If the dispute is not resolved 
through mediation, the matter may be submitted to the judicial system, in which event all litigation 
and collection expenses, witness fees, court costs and attorneys’ fees shall be paid to the 
prevailing party. 
 
6.15 Non-Discrimination.  In the performance of the terms of this Agreement, CONSULTANT 
shall not engage in discrimination in the employment of persons because of race, creed, color, 
religion, national origin, age, physical handicap, marital status, sexual orientation or gender. 
 
6.16 Governing Law.  This agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the state of North Carolina. 
 
6.17 Extent of Agreement.  This Agreement represents the entire and integrated Agreement 
between CLIENT and CONSULTANT and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or 
agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement may be modified or amended only by a 
subsequent written agreement signed by both parties. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, CONSULTANT and CLIENT have executed this agreement this  


________________________ day of __________________________, 20_____. 
 


CLIENT: Town of Wingate  CONSULTANT: Stearns & Wheler, PLLC. 


By:    By:   


Title:    Title:   


Signature:    Signature:   


Date:    Date:   
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Exhibit A ‐ Scope of Services 
 
Specific  articles of  the Agreement  are  amended  and  supplemented  to  include  the  following  agreement of  the 
parties: 
 
PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 
 
The Town of Wingate wishes to develop a water distribution and wastewater collection system master plan. This 
plan  will  be  conducted  concurrently  with,  and  be  coordinated  with  the  Comprehensive  Master  Plan  being 
performed  by  GHD.  The  Town  currently  owns  a  water  distribution  system  consisting  of  6‐inch  and  smaller 
galvanized  steel  pipe  that  was  constructed  in  the  1960s.  The  wastewater  collection  system  consists  of 
approximately  20 miles of primarily  vitrified  clay  pipe  (VCP)  constructed  in  1975.  The wastewater  system  also 
contains a small amount of ductile iron pipe (DIP), cast iron pipe (CIP) and polyvinyl chloride pipe (PVC). There are 
approximately 400 manholes in the system. 
 
Both the water and wastewater systems have experienced problems including sanitary sewer overflows and water 
line  breaks.  The  Town’s  wastewater  is  accepted  by  the  Union  County  collection  system.  The  wastewater  is 
eventually  treated  at  the  City  of Monroe’s wastewater  treatment  plant  (WWTP).  Currently, Union  County  has 
placed a moratorium on the Town and will not accept additional wastewater. This limits the Town’s ability to grow. 
 
The Town has  facility maps,  some of which are  very old. The Town  is  completing  the development of a water 
distribution system model. This model  is based on the Town’s water system maps augmented with physical field 
data collected by the Town. The model is being developed in EPANet and is expected to be complete in January of 
2010. The geometry of the model will be verified by the Town. The model will not be hydraulically calibrated. 
 
The Town has a sewer system map which was developed approximately 10 years ago and is based on the Town’s 
historic sewer maps. The Town has no sewer system model. 
 
The Town wishes to develop a water and wastewater system master plan that will: 
 


• Identify existing linear assets using the best information available to the Town 
• Develop a comprehensive map of both the water and wastewater systems 
• Serve as a technical tool for management of the system 
• Serve as a tool for maintenance of the system 
• Serve as a tool for preparing for future growth as identified in the Comprehensive Master Plan 


 
The Town’s goals for the Water and Wastewater System Master Plan include: 
 


• Ensure a sufficient supply of water delivered to the points of use. 
• Enable wastewater to be collected from and extended to areas programmed for growth. 
• Have a water distribution and wastewater collection mapping system that supports monitoring and 


maintaining the system in a manner that strives to maximize the public health, safety and welfare for all 
while minimizing every environmental impact. 


• Provide a tool that complements the work done as part of the Comprehensive Master Plan to achieve best 
land management practices and high water quality protection management. 
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SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
Water Distribution 
 
1.  Existing Water System Data – The Town will provide the digital modeling files for the water system as well 


as digital data associated with  the water distribution  system.  It  is assumed  that digital mapping of  the 
water distribution system is complete. This information will be provided by January 31, 2010. 


 
2.  Water  Demand  Projections  ‐  Based  on  current  and  projected  Town  populations  (prepared  by 


Comprehensive Master Planning Team), we will develop estimates of the average day, maximum day, and 
peak  hourly  demands  of  the  water  system  through  2020.    This  work  will  be  coordinated  with  the 
Comprehensive Master Plan efforts. 


 
3.  Pipe Condition – It is understood that water main breaks have occurred throughout the system. Working 


with the Town, Stearns & Wheler will work to identify areas of concern and areas in need of rehabilitation 
and / or replacement.  


 
4.  Water Distribution  System Modeling  ‐  The  computer model  of  the  distribution  system will  be  further 


developed for use as a design tool.  Demand data will be input into the existing model based on the best 
available data. Metered water data  indicating the volume of water coming  into the system (bought from 
the system wholesale supply) and the volume  leaving the system  (sold to the Town’s customers) will be 
compared to estimate unaccounted for water in the system. 
 
 The model will be developed as follows: 


 
a.  The modeling will be done  in EPANet. The model will be used  to prepare a preliminary  system 


layout adequate to meet fire flow requirements (as defined by the Owner at the kick‐off meeting) 
and meet current and future demand requirements. 


 
b.  The Town shall provide all available  information regarding operation of water storage tanks and 


well pumps, any Insurance Service Organization (ISO) studies of the system, and other hydrant and 
related flow tests that reflect the performance of the existing system if available. 


 
c.  The  results of  the modeling effort will be presented  in a  final  report.   The  report will  include a 


summary of the above tasks and the hydraulic aspects of the recommended improvements.   
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Sewer Collection 
 
5.  Coordination  with  Union  County  –  Stearns  &  Wheler  will  work  with  the  Town  to  document  the 


requirements of Union County as regards acceptance of wastewater from the Town. This information will 
be used to identify rehabilitation and replacement strategies as well as prepare for system growth. 


 
6.  Existing System Inventory ‐ The Town of Wingate will collect and deliver to Stearns & Wheler all paper and 


digital  data  associated  with  the  wastewater  collection  system.  No  GPS  or  field‐location  services  are 
included. 


 
7.  Wastewater Flow Projections ‐ Based on current and projected Town populations and Town‐supplied flow 


data, we will develop estimates of the average day and maximum day flows for the wastewater collection 
system through 2020.  This work will be coordinated with the Comprehensive Master Plan efforts. Peaking 
factors will be developed from data provided by the Town, data provided by Union County, or by State and 
industry standards. 


 
8.  Wastewater Collection System Model – A computer model of the distribution system will be developed of 


use as a design tool. Using the digitized maps provided by the Town and as‐built  information, Stearns & 
Wheler will develop a planning level hydraulic model for use in assessing system response to growth. The 
model will be developed as follows: 


 
a.  The model will be developed using a computerized hydraulic modeling package currently owned 


by  Engineer.  Current  flow  information  provided  by  the  Town will  be  used  to  estimate  current 
average day and maximum day flow distribution throughout the system. Pumping station records 
will also be used. 


 
b.  The model will be developed for all pipes 6‐inches  in diameter and larger. The Town will provide 


the necessary information. No survey is proposed. 
 
c.  Once the model is developed, the system will be analyzed for overall capacity under average day 


and maximum day  flow conditions. System deficiencies will be  identified  including areas of  low 
available capacity and poor velocity. 


 
d.  The  results of  the modeling effort will be presented  in a  final  report. The  report will  include a 


summary of the above tasks the hydraulic aspects of the recommended improvements. 
 
Recommendations and Report 
 
9.  Based on the findings from the water and wastewater system evaluations, Stearns & Wheler will develop a 


listing  of  projects  designed  to  improve  the  operations  of  both  systems.  The  recommendations will  be 
incorporated into a 10‐year CIP and may also show projects beyond 2010. Based on our knowledge of the 
systems, these recommendations may include: 


 
a.  Water lines to be replaced prioritized by condition and risk to the Town’s service requirements. 
 
b.  Sewer lines to be replaced or rehabilitated prioritized by condition and risk to the Town’s service 


requirements. 
 
c.  New water and sewer lines to be implemented to support planned growth. 
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10.  The findings of the water and sewer analysis will be summarized in a final report.  Two paper copies of the 


final report and one digital copy will be provided to the Town. 
 
Meetings and Presentations 
 
11.  Stearns & Wheler will facilitate and/or participate in meetings as follows: 
 


a. Kick‐off meeting as part of the Comprehensive Master Plan. Project goals and coordination will be 
discussed. This is scheduled for January 2010. 


b. Progress meeting. The results of water distribution system and wastewater collection system 
evaluations including recommended improvements (Capital Improvement Program) will be presented 
at progress meeting scheduled for April 2010. 


c. Review meeting with Town to discuss master plan and recommended improvements (draft report) as 
part of the comprehensive master plan, scheduled for May 2010. 


 
SCHEDULE 
 
Stearns & Wheler shall complete the Scope of Services outlined according to the following schedule. Completion of 
the draft and final reports is coordinated with the Comprehensive Master Plan deliverables. 
 
1.  Modeling:  April 2010 
2.  Draft Report:  May 2010 
2.  Final Report:  June 2010 
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